
 

Page 1 of 4 

Notice of Meeting  
 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel  
 

Date & time Place 
Contact                                          

 

Thursday, 28 
November 2024  
at 10.30 am 

Woodhatch Place, 
Reigate, Surrey 
 

Jake Chambers, Scrutiny Officer 
07971 663 794  
jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

 

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in  
another format, e.g. large print or braille, or another language please 
either call Democratic Services on 020 8541 9122, or write to  
Democratic Services, Surrey County Council at Woodhatch Place, 11 
Cockshot Hill, Reigate, Surrey, RH2 8EF, Minicom 020 8541 9698, fax 
020 8541 9009, or email jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk. 
 

This meeting will be held in public.  If you would like to attend and you 
have any special requirements, please contact Jake Chambers, Scrutiny 
Officer on 07971 663 794. 
 
Please note that the meeting will also be webcast live, which can be  
accessed via the Surrey Police and Crime Panel page on the Surrey  
County Council website. 
This page can be accessed by following the link below: 
https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=250&Year=0  

 

 

 
Members 

 
Cllr Shanice Goldman  
Cllr Paul Kennedy  
Cllr James Baker  
Cllr Barry Cheyne 
Cllr Mike Smith  
Cllr Danielle Newson 
Cllr John Robini (Chairman) 
Cllr Richard Wilson   
Cllr Tony Burrell  
Cllr Ayesha Azad 
Cllr Richard Smith 
Cllr Steve Greentree  
Vacant 
Vacant 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 
Mole Valley District Council 
Reigate & Banstead Borough Council 
Elmbridge Borough Council 
Runnymede Borough Council 
Guildford Borough Council 
Waverley Borough Council 
Surrey Heath Borough Council 
Spelthorne Borough Council 
Surrey County Council 
Tandridge District Council 
Woking Borough Council 
Independent Member 
Independent Member 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 
We’re on Twitter:  
@SCCdemocracy 

https://mycouncil.surreycc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=250&Year=0


 
Page 2 of 4 

PART 1 
IN PUBLIC 

 
1  ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 
The Panel is asked to elect a Vice-Chairman for the year 2024/25. 
 

 

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
The Chairman to report apologies for absence.  
 

 

3  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 26 SEPTEMBER 2024 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 26 
September 2024 as a correct record. 
 

(Pages 1 - 
30) 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the 
meeting or as soon as possible thereafter  

(i) Any disclosable pecuniary interests and / or  

(ii) Other interests arising under the Code of Conduct in respect of 

any item(s) of business being considered at this meeting 

NOTES: 

• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any 

item where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

• As well as an interest of the Member, this includes any 

interest, of which the Member is aware, that relates to the 

Member’s spouse or civil partner (or any person with whom the 

Member is living as a spouse or civil partner) 

• Members with a significant personal interest may participate in 

the discussion and vote on that matter unless that interest 

could be reasonably regarded as prejudicial. 

 

 

5  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting 
(21 November 2024). 
 
Note: 
A written response will be circulated to Panel Members and the 
questioner. 
 

 

6  COMMISSIONING UPDATE 
 
Purpose of the report: The Head of Policy and Commissioning will 
provide a presentation to the Panel at its meeting, setting out the 
OPCC’s commissioning activities in more detail. However, to provide 
greater context, this paper sets out the main funding streams used by 
the team to support local services. 

(Pages 31 - 
34) 



 
Page 3 of 4 

 
7  SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
Purpose of the report: This report sets out the financial 
performance of the Surrey Police Group (i.e., OPCC and Chief 
Constable combined) as at the 30th of September 2024 with a forecast 
to the 31st of March 2025.  

 

(Pages 35 - 
40) 

8  SURREY POLICE ESTATES UPDATE 
 
Purpose of the report: This paper provides an update for the panel 
on the projects being undertaken to support the delivery of the Surrey 
Estates Strategy. 
 

(Pages 41 - 
48) 

9  COMMISSIONER'S RESPONSE TO THE PANEL'S 
RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL 
REPORT 
 
Purpose of the item:  To note the Commissioner’s response to the 
Panel’s letter detailing its recommendations on the content of her 
annual report, which was tabled at the Panel’s 20 June 2024 meeting. 
 

(Pages 49 - 
52) 

10  PCC FORWARD PLAN AND KEY DECISIONS 
 
Purpose of the report: This report provides information on the key 
decisions taken by the PCC from September 2024 to present and sets 
out details of the Office’s ongoing Forward Plan for 2024. 
 

(Pages 53 - 
58) 

11  COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME 
 
For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and 
policing in Surrey with the Commissioner. 
 
Note: 
The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days 
before the meeting (Friday 22 November 2024). 
 

 

12  SURREY PCP BUDGET MID-YEAR CLAIM 2024 
 
Purpose of the report: The Surrey Police and Crime Panel has 
accepted a grant from the Home Office to meet the costs of the Panel, 
including the administrative support. This purpose of this paper is to 
report on the use of the grant in 2024 (April 2024 - September 2024), 
as noted in the Panel’s mid-year claim submission to the Home Office 
submitted by the 6 September 2024 deadline.  
 

(Pages 59 - 
62) 

13  COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING 
 
Purpose of the report: To note complaints against the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
received since the last meeting of the Police and Crime Panel. 
 

(Pages 63 - 
64) 

14  RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 
 
To review the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work 

(Pages 65 - 
80) 



 
Page 4 of 4 

Programme. 
 

15  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next public meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be held on 
3 February 2025. 
 

 

 
 

Terence Herbert 
Chief Executive 

Published: Wednesday, 20 November 2024 
 
 
 
 

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE 
 

Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile 
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of 
the meeting.  To support this, Woodhatch Place has wifi available for visitors – please ask at 
reception for details. 
 
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with 
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending 
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.   
 
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to 
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems, 
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be 
switched off in these circumstances. 
 
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined 
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions 
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems. 
 
Thank you for your co-operation 
 

 
Note:  This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council's internet site - at 
the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed.  The 
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within the Council. 
 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the meeting room and using 
the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images 
and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.   
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the representative of Legal and Democratic 
Services at the meeting. 

 



1 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the SURREY POLICE AND CRIME 
PANEL held at 10.30 am on 26 September 2024 at Woodhatch Place, 
Reigate, Surrey. 
 
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Panel at its next 
meeting. 
 
Members: 
(*Present) 
 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 
* 

Ms Juliet Fryer 
Borough Councillor Danielle Newson 
Borough Councillor Richard Wilson 
District Councillor Paul Kennedy 
John Robini 
Borough Councillor Barry J F Cheyne 
Borough Councillor James Baker 
Borough Councillor Mike Smith 
Borough Councillor Tony Burrell 
Ayesha Azad 

  
Apologies: 
 
 District Councillor Richard Smith 

Borough Councillor Ellen 
Nicholson 
Borough Councillor Shanice 
Goldman 
 

 
32/24 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION FROM CHAIRMAN  [Item 1] 

 
The Chairman opened the meeting and welcomed the members and 
Officers. 
 

33/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  [Item 2] 
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Shanice Goldman, Cllr Richard 
Smith and Cllr Ellen Nicholson. 
 

34/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  [Item 3] 
 
None received. 
 

35/24 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 20 JUNE 2024  [Item 4] 
 
The Minutes of the previous meeting were AGREED as a true and 
accurate record of the meeting. 
 

36/24 PUBLIC QUESTIONS  [Item 5] 

Page 1

3

Item 3



2 
 

 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. Two public questions were received in advance of the meeting. 
A response to the questions were published in a supplementary 
agenda. 
 

2. A member raised, on behalf of Cllr Ashley Tilling, that several of 
the Surrey BIDs that already had DISC paid for by levies were 
waiting for the direct link into Surrey Police (the Force) for ease 
of reporting incidents and to encourage more business 
engagement. The member asked if the Force could commit to 
creating the direct link and provide a schedule for this. The PCC 
explained she would not commit to anything on behalf of the 
Force. A written answer could be provided to the Panel, or the 
member could ask the Chief Constable at the Panel’s meeting 
with the Chief Constable.  
 

Actions/Requests for further information:  
The PCC to write to the Panel in response to Cllr Ashely Tilling’s 
supplementary question, asked by Cllr Paul Kennedy. 
 

37/24 POLICE AND CRIME PLAN CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY  
[Item 6] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Ellie Vesey-Thompson, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
(DPCC) 
Alison Bolton, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (OPCC) 
Damian Markland, Head of Performance and Governance (OPCC) 
Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman provided the background of the report. The PCC 
gave a brief introduction, noting that consultation was ongoing. 
 

2. A member noted that the report referred to “…a period of 
refinement and maintenance” that reframed some issues of the 
previous plan while maintaining the same foundations. The 
member asked if there were other areas being descoped or 
removed from the Plan to allow this change. The PCC explained 
that some areas, since the last Police and Crime Plan (Plan), 
had become ‘business as usual’ for the Force, and therefore did 
not need as much focus. The first Plan was reviewed in Summer 
2024 to review any possible areas for change. 

 
3. The member asked how impartiality and fairness would be 

ensured through the consultation process. For example, if 

Page 2

3



3 
 

political proportionality was guaranteed when consulting with 
political representatives and if there was a risk that the 
consultation could constitute an ‘echo chamber’ of similar views. 
The PCC explained that she viewed the consultation as 
apolitical. Everyone in Surrey had an opportunity to contribute. 
The public survey and wider engagement events would ensure 
everyone in Surrey had the opportunity to contribute, should they 
wish. 

4. A member asked how the focus of the Plan was expected to 
change due to the methodology, and if the PCC could commit to 
altering the plan significantly to reflect stakeholder feedback. 
The PCC explained that her Office (OPCC) awaited the results 
of the wider consultation. The public consultation would follow. 
She did not possess set expectations on the feedback. The 
Head of Performance and Governance explained that the 
methodology was a structural mechanism to collect and interpret 
data, to ensure the building of the Plan was based on a firm 
foundation. When the Panel would be given the final draft Plan, 
a breakdown of how the methodology operated and translated 
into the Plan would also be provided. 

 
5. A member noted the report’s reference that “…preliminary 

findings will be shared with focus group participants for feedback 
and confirmation” and queried if this group of participants would 
be a sub-set of those consulted in earlier rounds of consultation. 
The Head of Performance and Governance explained that after 
each focus group, the OPCC returned to participants with a 
transcript of the discussion for checking. An electronic form was 
also sent to participants, so they could clarify their statements 
and the OPCC’s interpretations of them. 

 
6. A member asked how the views offered in the more ‘informal’ 

Community Engagement events in September to December 
2024 would be incorporated into the new Plan if the same 
statistical methods were not applied. The PCC noted that the 
first ‘informal’ Community Engagement meeting took place in 
Guildford on 23 September 2024. Consideration was given to 
recording and producing a transcript of these sessions, but this 
would need consent of those attending. A written record of 
themes that arose in the meetings would instead be taken, to 
identify trends, which would inform the Plan. Community 
Engagement sessions were less to inform the Plan and were 
instead to inform and encourage people to take part in the 
consultation. It was also an opportunity to speak to the Chief 
Constable and Borough Commander.  

 
7. The member asked if the PCC could provide the absolute values 

for the numbers of participants involved in the focus groups and 
surveys as well as each response category.  The PCC confirmed 

Page 3

3



4 
 

this could be shared after the consultation and draft Plan was 
complete. 

 
8. A member queried how robust the internal review process was 

and if there was a peer review. The member raised that apart 
from management and rehabilitation of offenders, the PEEL 
reports found performance had deteriorated across the board. 
The member suggested that this performance could be linked 
with the performance against objectives in the Plan, as well as 
synchronising the Plan with the Chief Constable’s plan and 
national policing priorities. The PCC noted that everyone in the 
commissioning team and the OPCC reviewed the Plan. These 
teams were non-political and had experience of writing and 
delivering plans - the PCC also consulted with the Force on the 
Plan. The Head of Performance and Governance added there 
were different layers to the consultation. There was an internal 
review with officers in the OPCC and the Force. Focus groups 
were being reviewed and were thematically based, such as with 
groups from commissioned services and the business 
community. A public consultation would also be launched. There 
was a desk-based exercise where areas such as the Force 
Control Strategy, national directives and HMICFRS inspections 
were reviewed. The PCC noted that the current Plan is the most 
widely consulted Plan that Surrey has ever had, and the OPCC 
was going further with the new Plan. The Head of Performance 
and Governance noted the continuity brought by the PCC’s re-
election when building and refining the Plan, as it allowed for 
more detailed discussions with stakeholders. 
 

9. The member asked how much of the analytical review would be 
shared with the public and the Panel, along with the draft Plan. 
The member noted that when the current Plan was released 3 
years ago there was a lot of consultation that lead up to its 
development, but he felt that the draft plan was not consulted on, 
as such. The member asked if the way this was conducted 
would change. The Head of Performance and Governance 
clarified that the Panel would receive the draft Police and Crime 
Plan, and an analytical summary of the data, how it was 
interpreted and why it led to the formation of the Plan’s policies. 
The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer raised that when the 
draft Police and Crime Plan came to the Panel, it was not an 
additional stage of consultation, it was for the Panel to review, 
but there was still opportunity for the draft Plan to change. When 
the current Plan was brought to the Panel in draft, the member 
had raised the view that there was not enough focus given to 
rural crime, which was subsequently amended in the Plan. There 
was an element of time pressure to the plan, with lots of 
consultation in a relatively short period, but the Chief Executive 
was satisfied that the consultation was robust. 
 

Page 4

3



5 
 

10. The PCC raised that the duty of the PCC was to consult, but it 
was not set out how to consult, how widely and who with. The 
PCC did not want to rush the Plan, and wanted to ensure it was 
done right.  
 

11. The Head of Performance and Governance noted that the 
survey had been developed. The temptation was to make the 
survey long and detailed, but equally that this would likely deter 
enough people from completing the survey, so a balance was 
needed. It was agreed to share the survey with the Panel. 

 
12. The Chairman raised a suggestion of forming of a sub-

committee within the Panel, noting the need to look at the results 
of the consultation and methodology.  

 
13. A member asked if invites for the focus group sessions referred 

to in the report had been distributed, given the process was set 
to end in October 2024. The member also asked if councillors 
would be invited to these sessions given that they, and Councils, 
were identified as a stakeholder group in the report. The PCC 
explained that the focus groups were ongoing. Councillor 
sessions were still being worked on. Council Community Safety 
Partnerships (CSPs) were already invited to the sessions. It 
would not be feasible to meet personally with all Surrey 
councillors. Online feedback and smaller one-to-one groups 
would be used to engage with councillors.  

 
14. The Chairman requested that if there was a focus group session 

in a Panel member’s area, they were invited. The PCC explained 
it was not geographical in this way but encouraged all Panel 
members to attend the community engagement meetings and 
invite their constituents. 

 
15. A member asked if there had been engagement with local 

councils to try to ensure the dates and locations of the 
community engagement meetings were suitable. The PCC 
highlighted the difficulties of finding a date that suited the diaries 
of herself, the Chief Constable and the Borough Commanders. 
The meetings also needed to be in a specific area, on an 
evening and in an appropriate venue. Given this, the dates had 
not been checked with each council. However, the was a second 
opportunity with an online session in January 2025.  

 
The Committee NOTED the report. 
 
Actions/requests for further information: 

• OPCC to provide the absolute values for the number of 
participants involved in the focus groups and surveys, as well as 
for each response category once the consultation is completed. 

Page 5

3



6 
 

• The Head of Performance and Governance to share the 
consultation survey with Panel members. 

 
38/24 POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24  

[Item 7] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Ellie Vesey-Thompson, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
(DPCC) 
Alison Bolton, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (OPCC) 
Damian Markland, Head of Performance and Governance (OPCC) 
Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman provided a brief outline of the purpose of the 
report. The Commissioner moved to take questions. 
 

2. In reference to the Domestic Abuse Hub, which secured £2 
million in funding from the Domestic Abuse Perpetrator 
Intervention Fund, a member noted that the standards published 
alongside the fund required intervention programmes to take 
place within a wider community response, be delivered by well-
supported specialist staff, and benefit from monitoring and 
evaluation. The member asked how these interventions at the 
Surrey hub met these requirements. The PCC outlined the 
requirements were factored into the service specification and 
procurement process. Requirements were also embedded into 
the contractual obligations as part of receiving the funding. The 
commissioning team had lots of experience working with 
organisations to ensure contractual obligations were met and 
issues were tackled early. There were good relationships with 
funding partners which made a big difference.  
 

3. The Head of Performance and Governance added that when the 
OPCC received devolved funding, as part of the standing 
allocation or through a competitive process, the Home Office 
and/or the Ministry of Justice paid a lot of attention to what was 
done with the funding. The commissioning team were required to 
provide regular, formal updates on how money was being spent. 
This, in addition to the procurement process and tendering 
exercises, was all factored into the final contract. 
 

4. The member requested that in the Police and Crime 
Commissioner Annual Reports, a summary of what was 
achieved in-year with the Domestic Abuse Hub could be 
provided. The PCC confirmed this could be provided.  
 

Cllr Mike Smith left the meeting at 11.07am. 

Page 6

3



7 
 

 
5. A member, in reference to the report’s statement that “…we 

have made millions of pounds available to support victims of 
crime”, asked if the level of funding for these services had 
increased, decreased or remained the same in the last three 
years. The PCC explained that all the funding data was available 
in the annual financial statements on the OPCC’s website. The 
absolute level of funding available to the OPCC each year 
varied. In addition to funds received from the government, which 
was not yet known for future years, the OPCC and 
commissioning team bid for additional funds for areas such as 
Safer Streets and Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB). The annual 
difference does not necessarily reflect a trajectory of the OPCC’s 
commitment or lack of commitment, as the funding was often 
outside their control, she added. It was not always easy to 
separate victim services from community safety or reducing 
reoffending, as support offered by any one service, such as the 
Domestic Abuse Hub, was often there to support a range of 
people such as both perpetrators and victims. For 2022/23, the 
OPCC funded local services to £5.4 million (m) and for 2023/24 
this rose to £6.5m. 
 

6. A member queried why the total funding being allocated to 
increase public safety in Walton, Redhill and Guildford was set 
to decrease in 2024/25 from the previous year. The member 
also asked if sufficient advances in community safety had been 
realised in these areas, and if this reduction could compromise 
the delivery of the Serious Violence Reduction Strategy. The 
PCC explained this was part of the Safer Streets Fund that came 
from the last government. The amount of money the OPCC 
could bid for each year varies, as do the issues the government 
want PCCs to prioritise. The government had revisited its 
financial commitment to some of the national funding, which 
included the previously agreed funding such as that for Safer 
Streets.  Surrey’s allocation had been reduced as a result. 
Regarding Walton, Redhill and Guildford, funding provided 
earlier in 2024 was to support the establishment of new 
infrastructure and some street scene changes. The OPCC 
worked closely with CSPs to identify specific areas of need and 
to ensure funding opportunities were going to the right places. 
The Safer Streets funding delivered was always done in 
conjunction with district and borough councils.  
 

7. A member asked what work was being done to consult with the 
Voluntary and Community Frontline Sector (VCSF) or third 
sector experts in violence against women and girls (VAWG), 
such as organisations like End Violence Against Women. The 
member also asked if there was certainty that the work of other 
such organisations in this field would not be duplicated. The 
PCC explained that the OPCC had been commissioning 

Page 7

3



8 
 

services for victims of VAWG for over ten years, and had 
developed strong relationships, regionally, nationally and locally. 
The OPCC worked closely with national organisations such as 
Women’s Aid. Historically, local service providers were 
represented on police boards within the Force. 
 

8. The Head of Performance and Governance added that when the 
OPCC first started commissioning services for victims of crime 
there were occasions where services were delivered by different 
government departments –particularly with services for victims of 
rape and sexual assault, there were occasional instances where 
money was provided by central government and a new service 
appeared with no ‘join-up’, they added, noting that this has 
ceased in the last five years. They stated that the government 
now appeared better at understanding the value PCCs could 
bring to commissioning, and consulted with PCCs. This meant 
that most of the funding for services flowed through PCC offices 
which helped with coordination between the government and the 
OPCC. The OPPC had good relationships with providers and 
other statutory agencies, such as joint commissioning with 
Surrey County Council Central and NHS England, for example 
with the recommissioning of sexual assault referral centres 
(SARCs). The OPCC was part of the process in terms of 
supporting services through funding and commissioning. He 
clarified that there is now much less duplication.  
 

9. The Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner (DPCC) raised that 
the OPCC was leading the way in many areas, particularly 
regarding VAWG. Generally, any action on VAWG in Surrey was 
in collaboration with charity partners and therefore not 
duplicating, they noted, adding that the OPCC supported rural-
specific Independent Domestic Violence Advisors. As part of her 
role to lead on rural crime in Surrey, the DPCC sits on the 
National Rural Crime Network and had been asked to chair the 
working group nationally on rural domestic abuse.  
 

10. The Chairman raised interest in rural crime, and suggested the 
OPCC could produce a future report on how this was going. 
 

11. A member asked if the PCC could explain the choice to use a 
report format that did not involve Key Performance Indicators, 
RAG (red-amber-green) rating or other similar measures to track 
performance against stated objectives. The member referred to 
the example of Priority 1: Reducing violence against women and 
girls in the report, which did not state whether the violence had 
reduced or explained what the outcomes of the outlined activities 
were. The PCC explained that each priority in the report had a 
link and a QR code that took the reader to the Data Hub. Within 
this, there was a basket of measures for each element of the 
Police and Crime Plan, with both monthly and annual rolling-

Page 8

3



9 
 

trend data. Including data in a static report document meant the 
data would be out of date by the time the report was published. 
The PCC felt the current report format was more transparent, 
rather than a simplistic RAG rating determined by the PCC. It 
also ensured that residents, stakeholders and Panel members 
had access to the latest data. It allowed for the OPCC to show 
comparisons with previous years’ data, providing a better sense 
of the overall trajectory. The OPCC had started using custom 
mapping tools that made use of the Police.uk Application 
Programming Interface (API) data, allowing users to plot crime, 
ASB and stop and search activity in their area. The PCC was not 
aware of other OPCCs in the country that had a Data Hub or 
was publishing the amount of accessible and transparent data 
as Surrey is and clarified that all the data on VAWG could be 
viewed on the Data Hub. The PCC noted when first appointed as 
the PCC she felt VAWG was not being reported on enough and 
wanted to see this increase. The Head of Performance and 
Governance outlined he was happy to take any suggestions 
panel members should have concerning the Data Hub and noted 
that it would be updated after the launch of the new Police and 
Crime Plan to ensure it was reflective. 
 

12. The member expressed appreciation for the Data Hub but raised 
that the purpose of an annual report was to look at what 
happened in-year to compare to previous years. The PCC 
reiterated that all the data was available on the Data Hub and 
would prefer this approach over producing a report with out-of-
date data. Another member suggested that a simplified RAG 
rating would still provide an opportunity to compare to previous 
years’ performance, even if it was out-of-date. The PCC took the 
comments on board but reiterated her previous answer. 
 

Cllr Mike Smith returned to the meeting at 11.24am. 
 

13. A member raised that the existing Police and Crime Plan listed 
numerous objectives within each of the five headlines and asked 
what approach had been taken to identify which objectives to 
highlight in the report, to avoid the appearance of cherry-picking. 
The PCC explained this had been discussed within the OPCC, 
particularly regarding the new Police and Crime Plan. The Head 
of Performance and Governance explained that when the Data 
Hub was launched there was a breakdown of the 
objectives/actions, both for the OPCC and the Force, and joint 
actions. The OPCC started to provide updates under each of the 
actions, but due to the number of actions it was difficult to keep 
track of them, so this is being reviewed. The OPCC would have 
a new set of actions in the new Police and Crime Plan. Around 
when the new Plan was published, the Head of Performance 
and Governance would return to the committee with a process to 
make it easier to understand the delivery of the actions. The 

Page 9

3



10 
 

OPCC did publish, in the annual report and the Data Hub, 
qualitative updates around specific areas of work.  
 

14. The DPCC highlighted the work of the Surrey Youth 
Commission. The Youth Commission recently had their second 
annual big conversation conference where their findings for 
2024, which would feed into the Police and Crime Plan, were 
delivered. The Youth Commission went through the objectives it 
set for the OPCC, the police and partners in 2023 and identified 
what was delivered and what needed continued work. The Youth 
Commission’s plan would be published in early winter 2024. The 
DPCC encouraged the Panel to read this and ensured it would 
be shared. 
 

15. A member raised that with 4 years to go until the PCC was next 
up for election, there was an opportunity for the PCC to take a 
balanced approach and highlight areas that were going well and 
areas of frustration. The member raised an opinion that there 
was a tendency to pick the positives in the annual report. For 
example, the member referred to the report’s mention of the 
Surrey Police Inspections which referred the readers to the Data 
Hub, but the reality of the latest HMICFRS PEEL report was 
challenging. The PCC agreed that the PEEL report was 
challenging but explained it was not reflective of the situation at 
the time nor reflective of the current situation. The PCC wanted 
to ensure that data was available to the public and was not sure 
how many members of the public would read the annual report. 
 

16. A member asked about supporting armed forces and veterans, 
and how schemes to help employ veterans into the Force were 
being promoted. The DPCC referred to both her and the PCCs 
desire to scrap the degree requirement for policing when first 
appointed into their roles. The DPCC felt this requirement did not 
entice veterans to join the police and this change had helped. 
Both herself and the PCC supported the new Armed Forces 
Support Group in Surrey Police, which worked collaboratively 
with Sussex Police. This group applied for Silver Level in the 
Defence Employer Recognition Scheme, on behalf of the Force, 
which was achieved earlier in 2024. This group attended 
career’s fairs, visited barracks and spoke to departing soldiers. 
The group often went to ‘drop-ins’ at the veterans’ hubs. The 
group was looking into a veteran-specific route into Surrey 
policing, but now the degree requirement was dropped and the 
presence of alternative routes into policing was more 
established, this may not be as needed. The DPCC agreed to 
check the status of this and provide an answer to the committee. 

 
Actions/requests for further information:  

Page 10

3



11 
 

• PCC/OPCC to provide update on what was achieved in-year on 
the work of the Surrey Domestic Violence Hub in the next 
Annual Report. 
 

• OPCC to produce a future update on the progress made in 
regard to rural domestic abuse. 
 

• The DPCC to provide a written a breakdown of veteran’s work 
and Surrey Police- specifically on the status of a potential 
Veteran-specific route into Surrey policing, which was previously 
being considered. 

 
39/24 HMICFRS PEEL INSPECTION  [Item 8] 

 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Ellie Vesey-Thompson, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
(DPCC) 
Alison Bolton, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (OPCC) 
Damian Markland, Head of Performance and Governance (OPCC) 
Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined the purpose of the report. The PCC 
provided a brief introduction to the report and highlighted the 
work done on the ability to answer emergency calls quickly 
enough, noting that the Chief Constable informs her that Surrey 
Police was the fastest improving Force in the country on this 
measure. 
 

2. A member asked if there was a link between the latest PEEL 
inspection report finding that the Force required improvement on 
data recording, and the Information Commissioner ordering 
Surrey Police to address backlogs in its responses to information 
requests. The PCC did not believe there was, as it was done 
separately in different teams, but suggested members could ask 
the Chief Constable at the Panel’s meeting with him in October. 

 
3. Regarding the report’s reference to a new shift pattern being 

introduced in the call handling centre from September 2024, a 
member asked how the introduction of this measure featured 
into the plan for call response times, given the advances that 
had already been attained. The PCC noted she was pleased 
with performance improvements in 101 and 999 calls, and it was 
important to maintain this, and that revised shift patterns were 
being explored to ensure performance could be maintained. 
There were lots of measures being reviewed across the Force to 
ensure that where there were areas of improvement, it was 
improved, and where areas were improved, it would be 

Page 11

3



12 
 

maintained, she added, stating that she felt the workforce was 
integral to this. 

 
4. In reference to page 63 of the report, a member noted that the 

compliance against published response times for Grade 1 and 
Grade 2, despite an improvement from 2023, remained below 
the March 2022 level. The member asked how confident the 
PCC was that improvement in this area could be achieved. The 
PCC explained that the Force was making good progress, but 
were not there yet, which was important to recognise, and that 
the Chief Constable has highlighted it as an area he wants to 
improve. She stated that it was important to be transparent 
about the data, and that the Force was looking at the grading 
system as whole to allow for a more refined target. The 
Commissioner clarified that the grading system produced some 
unintended consequences, such as how the broad parameters 
for a Grade 2 response could make it seem that the Force had 
not attended something in time, when it may be that officers had 
spoken to a member of the public and agreed another time to 
arrive that suited the resident, meaning that it would appear that 
the Force had missed its Grade 2 target. The PCC encouraged 
the Panel to ask the Chief Constable about this at its next with 
him. 
 

5. The Head of Performance and Governance added that 
particularly with domestic abuse cases, it was found that the 
best approach in terms of integrity and getting the best victim 
statement was to give the victim some time, as opposed to 
officers arriving straight away, provided there was not an 
immediate risk to a victim or complainant. In domestic abuse 
cases classified as Grade 2, the officer or contact centre may 
agree with the victim at the time to meet with them later, get 
resources in place and ensure access to support services, they 
said. However, this was not considered when measuring the 
Force’s response time for Grade 2, as this started at the point of 
report. He noted that the new grading structure would try to 
provide more granularity around this. 

 
6. The Vice-Chair asked if detail of the performance management 

measures, training programme and longer-term sustainable 
model being implemented for AFI (area for improvement) 1 
concerning the handling of sexual offences and their recording 
could be provided. The PCC explained this was a large piece of 
work and suggested the Panel could look at it as a separate item 
for another panel meeting. 

 
7. Regarding AFI 4, on Stop and Search and Use of Force, a 

member noted that these could be useful tools when used in the 
right way, but if misapplied it could lead to damage to the public 
perception of the Force. The member asked how the outcomes 

Page 12

3



13 
 

of the community engagement sessions with members of the 
public would impact Force behaviour and policies, and how the 
Force would know when it had satisfied this AFI. The PCC noted 
the importance of stop and search but that it had been used as a 
‘political football’, and that the Force has lots of experience and 
expertise using community feedback on stop and search, which 
informed the approach to operational policing more generally. 
Historically, stop and search included a community scrutiny 
panel, where volunteers reviewed instances of stop and search 
and provided feedback. She also clarified that the OPCC had 
been working closely with the Force over the past year to refine 
the process, and that a staff member in the OPCC helping with 
the analytics had specific experience as an academic working 
with MOPAC (The Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime) on this 
issue and produced a report on it. The Panel were informed that 
the Force was introducing a RAG rating system to formalise the 
way the data was captured and that the OPCC was working with 
the Force to review the recruitment process for this, to ensure as 
many people as possible can participate. In reference to her 
participation in many residents’ and community engagement 
meetings, the PCC was not aware anyone had raised issues 
around stop and search here. Therefore, the PCC expressed 
more confidence in the Force and the OPCC working with them 
to ensure there was a proper scrutiny panel who were the right 
people to look at stop and search rather than community 
engagement meetings, which were less formal. 
 

8. Regarding how the Force would know AFI 4 had been met, the 
Head of Performance and Governance clarified the internal 
process. When there were AFIs from HMICFRS, they were 
overseen by the Strategic Planning team, who work with Surrey 
Police to ensure that updates are provided. The Strategic 
Planning team have an ongoing dialogue with HMICFRS 
inspectors and provided updates on what was done to address 
issues raised. Through this ongoing communication, eventually a 
point was reached where HMICFRS was satisfied that issues 
addressed were met. 

 
9. A member asked how the Crime Improvement Plan would 

achieve better outcomes for victims of crime, and what would 
occur in each of the three phases of the plan. The PCC 
explained that the AFI in the HMICFRS report was specifically 
related to outcomes for types of crimes and not support offered 
to victims more generally. In terms of Surrey Police’s compliance 
with the Victims’ Code of Practice, HMICFRS found that the 
Force had effective measures in place. Victims of crime are 
taken seriously and the OPCC looked closely at this area, they 
noted. The PCC shared that she has recently taken over the role 
of the national victims’ portfolio - the overarching aim of the three 
phases was to bring the proportion of victim-based crimes, 

Page 13

3



14 
 

assigned specific crime outcomes, more in-line with the national 
averages. She clarified that there was not a large discrepancy 
between Surrey Police and other Forces, but HMICFRS 
inspectors did note that Surrey Police was using more out of 
court disposals and encountering more evidential difficulties, 
which was an important part of the work. 
 

10. The Head of Performance and Governance added that there 
would be checking of the existing processes to ensure officers 
know which powers to use and when to use them appropriately.  

 
11. The member raised that the Force had a ‘3-pillar strategy’ for 

tackling discriminatory behaviour and asked if the Force sought 
advice from government or specialist VCSF/third-sector 
organisations for this. They also asked about how the behaviour 
of the organisation would be ‘tracked.’ The PCC stated that she 
did not know who the Force specifically used but noted that 
police forces put a lot of effort into this area nationally, such as 
through the National Police Chief’s Council. There was a lot of 
experience for the Force to draw from, in addition to internal 
experience. Feedback would be tracked through various 
channels including a staff feedback mechanism and pulse 
surveys. The PCC encouraged the Panel to ask the Chief 
Constable about this area at the Panel’s next meeting, as it was 
an area he had put a lot of effort into. 
 

12. The Head of Performance and Governance noted the Force’s 
ability to bring organisations from the voluntary sector into some 
of the governance processes. For example, when he was 
looking after victim services, the Force often had representatives 
from some domestic abuse and rape and sexual assault provider 
services on boards, and at times jointly chairing the boards with 
police officers and those responsible for delivering internally.  
 

13. Regarding AFI 7, around the Force’s need to do more to 
understand the workforce’s wellbeing needs and tailor 
accordingly, a member felt this AFI linked to problems the Force 
had with areas like officer and staff retention. The member 
referred to a previous answer from the PCC, that the workforce 
was integral to improvement. The member quoted from the 
Surrey PEEL assessment 2023-25 report that ‘the force told us 
that it hasn’t completed a force well-being survey in three years. 
And it hasn’t completed the Bluelight self-assessment to 
understand what affects good or poor well-being’. The member 
noted there had been a survey of the police staff, but asked if 
the OPCC knew if what was raised in the PEEL assessment was 
addressed. The Head of Performance and Governance outlined 
that the Chief Constable could provide more information on this 
and that the Force had put a lot of effort into improving this 
process, such as through pulse surveys. They noted that there 

Page 14

3



15 
 

are now more opportunities to feedback issues, such as 
workloads and discrimination, and there were other internal 
pieces of work looking specifically at issues of discrimination, 
such as the Race Action Plan and other boards that oversaw 
workplace discrimination-based issues.  
 

14. The PCC highlighted point 10 of the Chief Constable’s ‘Our Plan’ 
which spoke specifically about staff and officer wellbeing, stating 
that this is an area that the PCC also wanted to look at with the 
Chief Constable, noting admiration for those that did shift work. 
The Chief Constable and herself were going to meet with Surrey 
University shortly to hopefully help to develop a pilot around shift 
work. The PCC noted the importance of ensuring the workforce 
could live a long and healthy life beyond policing. 
 

15. The member quoted from the Surrey PEEL assessment 2023-25 
report that ‘during our fieldwork, we learnt that police staff 
investigators do not have access to police radios, unlike police 
officers. Police staff investigators must use mobile phones to 
ring 999 if they need back-up. This makes police staff 
investigators more vulnerable which negatively affects well-
being’. The member asked if the OPCC was aware of this and if 
it had been dealt with. The Chairman raised it would be a 
question for the Chief Constable. 

 
16. The Chairman thanked the PCC for promoting the welfare of the 

workforce and those doing shift work. The PCC highlighted the 
impact shift work had on families, and that society should be 
doing more to support all shift workers. 

 
The Panel NOTED the report. 
 
Actions/requests for further information: 

• To clarify: How will AFI 1 (force is too often failing to record 
sexual offences, particularly sexual assault, and rape crimes) 
and detail of the performance management measures, training 
programme and longer-term sustainable model being 
implemented for this be updated on for the Panel? Will this be a 
future report? 

 
The Chairman paused the meeting at 12.59pm 
 
The Chairman resumed the meeting at 1.10pm 
 

40/24 SURREY POLICE RECRUITMENT AND WORKFORCE PLANNING 
UPDATE  [Item 9] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 

Page 15

3



16 
 

Ellie Vesey-Thompson, Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
(DPCC) 
Alison Bolton, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (OPCC) 
Damian Markland, Head of Performance and Governance (OPCC) 
Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined the purpose of this report.  
 

2. In reference to Surrey Police now employing more officers than 
ever before, due to exceeding the government officer 
recruitment uplift target, a member asked what impact this had 
on Surrey Police Group’s finance, given the £18m of savings 
required over the next four years. The PCC explained that the 
previous government offered two incentives to Forces to recruit 
above uplift. The Force took advantage of both offers in 2023/24 
and 2024/25. 10 people applied in the first year, and a further 12 
people in 2024/25 - for each officer recruited above the uplift in 
2024/25, the government provided a grant of £48,000, and it was 
assumed that the additional officers would continue to be funded 
separately, not under the wider Force budget. She noted that, if 
this ceased to be the case, officer numbers may need to be 
reduced through natural wastage and until it returned to the uplift 
figure, clarifying that all Forces lobbied the previous government 
to recognise the cost of funding. Uplift officers increased 
overtime, as officers moved up the pay scale, which was a 
challenge, she added. This had so far not been recognised in 
funding allocations and was a growing pressure. The OPCC was 
waiting to see if this would be reflected in the spending review 
later in 2024, but the PCC was not hopeful. The Chief Finance 
Officer added that he was on the National Police Chief’s Council 
(NPCC) Finance Committee which had put in their submission 
that the rising cost of the uplift needed to be recognised and 
adequately funded. However, public finances were tight. 

 
3. The member asked if there was any indication on this from the 

new government. The PCC reiterated that the spending review 
was awaited, along with more detail from the government. Police 
Chief Constables had been told to not expect more money. 

 
4. The Chairman asked if Surrey was still lobbying for different 

funding formulas so that Surrey received a fair amount. The 
PCC confirmed this was the case and stated that any change in 
the funding formula would not necessarily benefit Surrey, despite 
this being the assumption due to Surrey’s position. 
 

5. A member asked for clarity on how the PCC expected 
government plans for 13,000 new neighbourhood police, PCSOs 
and special constables across the UK would affect the Force 

Page 16

3



17 
 

and be implemented. The PCC explained that the OPCC and the 
Force were still waiting for clarity on this. It was a manifesto 
commitment, so the OPCC was expecting it, and early 
discussions with Home Office indicated it would be a mixture of 
officers, the PCC added. Chief Constables had been told to not 
expect any extra funding, which would be a potential challenge, 
and it was believed it would be a combination of new PCSOs 
and Officers. Although recruiting for PCSOs was a challenge in 
Surrey, the Force was now 18 PCSOs short of establishment, 
which was a better position, and the Force was continuing to try 
different methods of recruitment. The Commissioner noted that 
the NPCC Finance Committee had stated that that if Forces 
nationally were to meet the pledge of 13,000 Officers/PCSOs, 
more funding would be needed and that the committee had 
spoken about some of the PCSOs and Officers being re-
deployed from other areas, which was a concern for the PCC as 
it may involve moving Officers away from specialist services.  
 

6. The member asked if the PCC could provide any insight into the 
reasons suspected to be behind the higher and slightly 
increasing rate of officer attrition in the Force. The PCC 
explained there were several factors, including a competitive job 
market, with better salaries available elsewhere. Policing was 
not generally that flexible, for example, some roles could not 
involve working from home, and Surrey Police had to contend 
with the Metropolitan Police’s recruitment campaigns, which 
tended to offer higher salaries or benefits. She noted that Surrey 
was an expensive county, particularly for young people and due 
to national pay scales, it was often cheaper to leave Surrey and 
go to a different force. Policing was not for everybody, which 
some applicants did not realise until experiencing the job. Work 
was going into HR and recruitment teams in trying to be open, 
explicit and setting expectations on what was expected from 
applicants, she added, as well as into ensuring that there are 
early conversations with people who were considering leaving 
the Force or if a manager noticed an employee was not satisfied 
with the work. When the Force was recruiting high numbers of 
officers quickly, increased attrition was a challenge, she said. 

 
7. The member raised that the report referred to the new enhanced 

scrutiny arrangements for local policing bodies and PCCs with 
respect to misconduct hearings, including meetings with hearing 
Chairs. The member asked what impact the PCC envisaged 
these changes would have, and if the PCC believed there was a 
way that the Panel could be updated on strategic issues or 
themes that arose from this. The PCC explained it was 
anticipated that all Forces nationally would see an increase in 
misconduct hearings. The Force was doing work in rooting out 
all kinds of behaviour that was considered inappropriate, which 
would lead to a corresponding increase in appeals. These 

Page 17

3



18 
 

processes are supported by the OPCC through the recruitment 
of legally qualified Chairs and independent panel members. The 
provision of training and ensuring compliance was managed by 
the OPCC. The OPCC had been working to ensure better and 
more efficient working relationships, particularly with 
neighbouring OPCCs. She explained how this allowed the 
OPCC to deal with any increases in demand and the ability to 
borrow from other OPCCs and vice versa. The data associated 
with misconduct cases is confidential, but the OPCC would 
provide updates on strategic issues as part of the standing 
workforce planning update. 
 

8. Regarding the report’s statement that the proportion of officers 
and staff facing misconduct hearings was small in comparison to 
the 4000 staff, although the Force conducted 47% more 
hearings this year than in 2022/23, a member asked how the 
Panel could be certain that the Force was not simply failing to 
detect a greater number of instances of misconduct. The PCC 
noted that no vetting or misconduct process would be perfect, 
but time and effort went into ensuring the Force’s local 
processes were as robust as possible. The PCC felt process 
was better now than previously. The OPCC played a larger role 
in the oversight of misconduct hearings than previously, both in 
terms of the PCC’s role and bringing in new staff to oversee this, 
and that had a close working relationship with the organisations 
such as the Professional Standards Department and the Police 
Federation of England and Wales (PFEW). The PCC speaks 
regularly to the PFEW to understand their concerns. The PCC 
was pleased to see an increase in misconduct hearings as it 
meant reporting and detection mechanisms were more robust. 
The last report detailing the Force’s misconduct clarified that 
most misconduct proceedings were because a colleague had 
reported another colleague. The PCC felt this was reassuring, as 
it showed police officers were feeling enabled and confident to 
report.  

 
9. A member raised that the PFEW Pay and Morale Survey found 

concerning levels of dissatisfaction among Surrey officers, 
including with pay, and a large number confessed a desire to 
leave the service within two years. The member asked how 
dissatisfaction with compensation could be reconciled with the 
Medium-Term Financial Forecast. The PCC noted it was a 
challenge and police pay was set nationally by the Pay Review 
Body. Once the government had reviewed the body’s findings 
and decided on the increase officers would receive, the Force 
was obliged to comply with the recommendation. In the current 
year, the government provide additional funding to help fund the 
cost of the pay rise above 2.5%. Going forward, she said, the 
Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) included annual rises of 
2.5%, assuming that if a larger increase was agreed by the 

Page 18

3



19 
 

government following the Pay Review Board, it would be funded. 
There were lots of reasons why people left the police force, 
including better or more convenient opportunities, as well as 
pay, she added. The Chief Finance Officer stated that the pay 
was set by the government, and the assumption was that any 
rise above 2.5% would be funded. If it were not funded, it would 
add pressure on the MTFP. 

 
10. A member asked how officer numbers were expected to change 

over the PCC’s term in office, how financial penalties for low 
officer numbers would be averted, and what the assumption was 
around uplift penalties. The PCC explained there was a lot of 
uncertainty around government policy in this area and that 
officer numbers were therefore not able to be forecasted with 
certainty beyond 2024/24. For the current year, the Force was 
required to obtain their uplift baseline, which was 2,253 officers, 
as well as the additional 22 that was agreed to recruit post-uplift. 
The PCC clarified that the Force believe they are on track to 
meet the target but were waiting for the government to reveal the 
funding arrangements. The Chief Finance Officer confirmed 
there were financial penalties if the target for uplift arrangements 
were not met - uplift arrangements are put in place for each 
year, and therefore Surrey Police Group only knew the 
arrangements for 2024/25. It was the responsibility of the 
government what arrangements would be put in place for the 
uplift in future years. Until this was revealed, predictions could 
not be made with certainty. 
 

11. The member raised that it would still be a decision around how 
resources were used to maintain, increase or decrease officer 
numbers. In reference to the last PCC election, the member 
noted that the ballot papers bore the description “more police, 
safer streets” by the Commissioner’s name -the member asked if 
voters should take this as a commitment that the number of 
officers would increase during the PCC’s term. The PCC stated 
that the number of officers had increased and was still 
increasing and expressed commitment to do everything possible 
to ensure this. In terms of operational resources, it was for the 
Chief Constable to decide where operational resources were 
best deployed. 
 

12. A member referred to the Equalities and Human Rights 
Commission’s updated guidance for the Prevent duty, which 
would require all organisations to take positive and reasonable 
steps to prevent sexual harassment. The member queried how 
confident the PCC was that the Force would meet this objective. 
The member noted it was good to see the initiatives, in relation 
to tackling misogyny and victim blaming on page 79 of the 
agenda and asked if there was any evidence that it was having a 
positive effect on attrition rates. The member also asked if there 

Page 19

3



20 
 

was similar work in relation to ethnic minorities and LGBT+ 
officers and staff. Regarding updates on the Prevent duty, the 
PCC noted it was an important announcement and that it had 
likely duplicated work and previous announcements that came 
from other organisations. Therefore, the PCC did not believe 
Surrey Police were going to be required to do anything 
differently to meet it. In terms of attrition and misogyny, the 
Force had increased female applicants to police officer and 
detective positions, - Surrey Police looks quite different now to 
how it did in the past. The PCC remarked that, as the world 
moved on, policing was traditionally behind, but Surrey Police 
was moving in the right direction, and that the Chief Constable’s 
vision was to have a workforce that was diverse, inclusive and 
equal, and a workforce that understood why this was important. 
The PCC was seeing this happening under the current Chief 
Constable and noted that the Force had agreed an equality, 
diversity and inclusion policy. There were several dedicated 
forums that considered equality issues, which included the 
Disability Advisory Group, the Race Advisory Group, the 
LQBTQ+ Advisory Group, as well as dedicated Liaison Officers 
within the Force for people experiencing issues. These were 
well-signposted. The Force and Deputy Chief Constable had 
taken a real interest in leading the Gold Group around this area. 
Pulse surveys and wider HR feedback mechanisms were 
designed to capture this data. 

 
13. The member referred to a statement from a senior member of 

the Surrey Police prior to the riots that Surrey Police was an anti-
racist organisation and asked if the PCC endorsed this 
statement. The PCC replied she would not endorse a statement 
without seeing it. 
 

14. A member asked if an officer resigned during a misconduct 
case, whether the case would be subject to the same 
thoroughness of investigation. The PCC confirmed that a 
resignation did not end the process of the investigation. 

 
The Panel NOTED the report. 
 
Actions/requests for further information: 

• The PCC/OPCC to provide updates on the strategic issues 
regarding the enhanced scrutiny arrangements around 
misconduct hearings, as part of the standing workforce planning 
update item. 

 
41/24 MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN UPDATE 2024/25 TO 2027/28  

[Item 10] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 

Page 20

3



21 
 

Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined the purpose of the report. The Chief 
Finance Officer gave a brief introduction, outlining the report was 
the latest updated financial forecast for the period from 2025/26 
to 2028/29. It set out the level of savings based on assumptions 
in the forecast, which may need to be found in the period. 

 
2. A member raised that the report stated that “[…] cumulative 

savings of £23.4m will be required for the 4 years from 2025/26 
to 2028/29”, while the Annual Report stated that “[…] the MTFF 
indicates that savings of over £18m are required over the next 
four years”. The member asked what the reason for this 
discrepancy was or if it was an updated figure. The Chief 
Finance Officer explained they were updated assumptions. In 
particular, the pay assumptions in the intervening period were 
updated, which was why the gap increased.  
 

3. The member noted that the report assumed for 2025/26 that the 
referendum limit would be returned to 2%. The member asked if 
this assumption was the same for the next three years. The 
Chief Finance Officer confirmed this was the assumption in the 
forecast, but hopefully in the October Budget the Government 
will announce what the referendum limit will be. 

 
4. A member referred to paragraph 11 of the report which noted 

that Surrey could receive the lowest share of a £175m Home 
Office grant for funding Police Force pay awards, depending on 
the calculation methodology used. The member asked what 
contingencies were being explored for if this occurred, and what 
impact meetings with the Home Office had had on this area. The 
Chief Finance Officer explained the Force had received pay 
grants in previous years which unfortunately were all allocated 
on the funding formula basis despite the PCC lobbying the 
previous government to change the methodology. The same 
formula allocation was done this year despite the Home Office 
informing him that various methodologies were considered. This 
meant Surrey Police had the lowest share nationally of the 
£175m amounting to £2.1 million to cover the pay increase for 
officers and staff for 2024/25. One of the reasons provided was 
that the Home Office did not want Forces to lose faith in the 
current formula methodology overall. The £2.1m grant awarded 
should cover the increase in officer pay this year but for later 
years need to wait to see what next year’s increase would be. 
 

5. The member asked what the gap between the £2.1m and the 
total cost of the Force’s pay award was. The Chief Finance 
Officer explained that for police officers, the grant just covers the 

Page 21

3



22 
 

additional cost over the 2.5% allowed for in the budget. 
However, there was no additional money to cover the staff 
increase and the government had been clear that the grant was 
intended to cover the staff and officer increase. The shortfall on 
this was around £2.4m. 
 

6. A member asked if detail on the potential areas for further 
savings being identified by the tactical reviews and the 2025/26 
in-depth budget review could be provided. The member also 
asked if there was a likelihood that reserves would need to be 
drawn on. The Chief Finance Officer explained there was an 
extensive change programme over the next few years, which 
was looking at areas such as changing shift patterns, benefits of 
upgrading the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system and 
reducing overtime. There was a programme looking to 
rationalise the Force’s vehicle fleet. There was also a detailed 
budget review by area, adding that there were still savings that 
needed to be identified for next year. If these savings were not 
identified in time, reserves may have to be drawn upon to cover 
the shortfall. 

 
7. A member asked to what extent had the PCC been speaking to 

Surrey MPs to lobby them and referred to a vote in early 2025 
where Surrey MPs had an opportunity to express satisfaction or 
dissatisfaction with what was offered. The PCC explained that 
this conversation happened constantly and that there would be a 
meeting with herself and the Chief Constable, with all Surrey 
MPs, and it would be part of the discussion. 

 
8. A member raised that the report referred to the possibility that 

services may be impacted by the savings required, and asked 
what this could mean for Surrey residents, and if there were 
emergency plans in place should this occur. The Chief Finance 
Officer replied that it was too early to comment, until it was 
known what the level of savings would be. It would need to be 
worked out which areas savings would need to be taken from. 
He added that The Chief Constable and the PCC were 
committed to try to minimise any impact on residents.  
 

9. A member raised that his local authority was given an ‘optimistic’ 
and ‘pessimistic’ version of the Medium-Term Financial Plan as 
well as the main version of the plan. The member asked if any 
thought had been given to doing the same for the Surrey Police 
Group. The member noted that areas such as the extent to 
which one should allow for the possibility of income through 
mutual aid and renting out police cells to the prison service, had 
been debated in the past, though the reality was this occurred 
even though there had been no assumption for it. Equally, the 
assumption that grant funding would be essentially ‘flat’ was 
pessimistic. The member raised there had also been promises 

Page 22

3



23 
 

for more neighbourhood policing from the PCC, which required 
funding to deliver. The PCC stated she would welcome the 
Panel’s joint efforts, noting that Surrey Police Group would suffer 
if it was required to hire more officers, which, although good in 
principle, could leave the Force in a worse position if there was 
no additional funding.  
 

10. The Chief Finance Officer explained that some scenario 
modelling was done and could be shared with the Panel. On an 
optimistic basis, the gap fell to £21.5m, and on a pessimistic 
basis the gap rose to £27.6m. The gap depended on the 
assumptions used in the forecast, and hence it was probably 
better to understand the sensitivities within the forecast. For 
example, if Surrey Police Group had put 2.5% pay into the 
forecast and if the government it would fund an additional 1% of 
this, it would move the forecast by £2.5m. Similarly, if the council 
tax cap was moved from 2% for every pound it increases a 
further £0.5m would be received.  

 
11. The Chairman suggested the Panel could write a letter, together 

with the OPCC, to send to the Home Office in support of extra 
funding and the unfairness of the funding formula to Surrey. 

 
The Panel AGREED to a write letter to Home Office. 
 
RESOLVED: 

1. The Panel NOTED the initial outcome of the forecast, the likely 
need for additional savings and the financial challenge that this 
represents. 

 
2. The Panel NOTED the current assumptions being employed in 

the scenarios and the risks therein. 
 

Actions/requests for further information: 

• The Chief Finance Officer to share the scenario modelling on the 
pessimistic and optimistic versions of the MTFS. 

 
42/24 SURREY POLICE GROUP UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 

2023/24  [Item 11] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Kelvin Menon, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined the purpose of the report. The Chief 
Finance Office provided a brief introduction, noting that the audit 
was currently being conducted and was on track to be 
completed by the statutory deadline in February. 

Page 23

3



24 
 

 
2. A member asked how the underspends in ‘Supplies and 

Services’ and ‘Grants and Income’ (of £1.8m and £5.8m, 
respectively) were achieved in 2023/24, and if it was anticipated 
that these would be repeated for 2024/25. The Chief Finance 
Officer explained that the £1.8 m was an effort to drive savings 
earlier in the period for use in 2024/25. This meant several 
centrally held budgets for things like estates were not all used. 
The £5.8m was made up by things such as additional income for 
the use of custody cells, due to prison overcrowding. Grants 
were also awarded in-year for Safer Streets. Although there was 
an underspend in ‘Supplies and Services’, there would be an 
overspend elsewhere in the budget, they added, noting that 
Surrey Police Group had income from mutual aid and 
counterterrorism, and received a £1.6m refund of business rates 
which would go towards the Group’s estates programme. He 
noted that some of these would be repeated in 2024/25, such as 
additional income for custody cells and mutual aid due to civil 
disturbance.  
 

3. A member referred to the £0.2m that was underspent by Surrey 
Police Group and the substantial increase in total reserves which 
had increased from £30.8m in 2023 to £37.2m in 2024. The 
member queried if there was a significant revenue surplus, but it 
had been put into reserves. The Chief Finance Officer confirmed 
there was a revenue surplus and part of this increase was the 
£1.6m rates refund. During the year, Surrey Police Group had 
sold several assets, and this money was put into reserves. He 
stated that some programmes had slipped in the capital 
programme, and this money also went into reserves, and that 
more information could be retrieved from the Force to provide 
more detail to the Panel. 

 
4. Regarding the additional funding that was secured from the 

Home Office for recruiting above the uplift target, a member 
asked if this was financially prudent, given this increase did not 
cover the future salaries of officers as they were promoted up 
the pay scale. The Chief Finance Officer explained that the 
government offered the incentive to recruit above uplift, but 
Surrey Police Group was not monitored on this target as part of 
the base uplift figure. Therefore, if the funding was not renewed, 
Surrey Police Group was no longer obliged to keep to those 
additional officer numbers and so the overall total could fall back 
to the uplift total through natural wastage. This meant that 
Surrey Police Group could recruit ahead of time and get paid an 
incentive to do so. It was felt this was the right thing to do at the 
time, but it would need reviewing depending on what the uplift 
conditions were in future years. 

 

Page 24

3



25 
 

5. The Chairman raised that overtime costs were overspent by 
£2.7m in 2023/24, but not all of this was due to contact staff 
vacancies, that were now filled. The Chairman asked how the 
costs from the other sources, namely Neighbourhood Policing, 
Specialist Crime and Custody, would be mitigated in future 
years. The Chief Finance Officer explained that an overtime 
working group was established which reviewed areas such as 
shift patterns and handovers. There would always be an element 
of overtime to cover, for example, special operations, bank 
holidays and sickness though in the past, there may not have 
been enough senior officer oversight of where overtime was 
spent. Therefore, the working group was reviewing working 
practices to try to minimise the amount of unplanned overtime. It 
was noted that overtime impacted on officer’s wellbeing as well 
as cost. 
 

6. A member referred to the June 2024 internal audit progress 
report, which highlighted limited assurance reports for financial 
controls in seven different areas. The member noted the written 
response received and further raised that it would be helpful to 
understand what the concerns raised by internal audit were. The 
Chief Finance Officer explained that auditors not only reviewed 
financial controls but also operational controls and systems. The 
Chief Finance Officers outlined the different areas highlighted in 
the report, and what the recommendations related to, including 
the leavers process and if the correct procedure was being 
followed. He noted that several vehicle recovery 
recommendations related to inadequate storage of vehicles 
seized by police, and that one recommendation was for the 
armouries related to training records that required updating. 
Recommendations around business continuity related to several 
outstanding plans that require testing, he said, while 
recommendations around redundancy related to instances 
where redundancy policy had not been precisely followed. He 
added that the recommendations demonstrated that the auditors 
had done a thorough job and allowed for actions to improve the 
areas highlighted. The Joint Audit Committee reviewed the full 
report, together with the PCC and the Chief Constable, and so 
managers were then held to account. 
 

7. The Chairman referred to the £1.9m more than what was 
budgeted for in grants received in 2024, as demonstrated on 
page 5 of the report. The Chairman asked if this was likely to be 
repeated in future years, and what would happen if similar 
amounts were not acquired for future budgets. The Chief 
Finance Officer explained that the grants were applied for or 
simply awarded by government. For example, this year grants 
were awarded for ASB and Safer Streets. Surrey Police Group 
would like these grants to be repeated and increased in the 
future. However, if the grants stopped, initiatives would need to 

Page 25

3



26 
 

reduce or be stopped. Conversely if additional grants were 
awarded, it would enable the Police to support more initiatives 
which could include extra policing. 
 

8. A member referred to paragraph 36 of the report, which stated 
“The Force has benefited financially from a tight labour market in 
that its inability to recruit Police Staff has enabled it to not only to 
have a larger vacancy margin than planned […] The Force 
cannot afford for all these posts to be filled […]”. The member 
raised that it was not just salary levels that determined 
retainment of staff, it was also based on whether the Force was 
a good employer. The member asked if the above passage from 
the report implied that the Force should not try too hard to retain 
and recruit staff, as financially it could not afford to fill all 
vacancies. The Chief Finance Officer outlined that from a purely 
financial viewpoint the greater the number of unfilled vacancies 
the more chance there was of balancing the budget. However, 
this has operational impacts and creates pressures on current 
staff. This was partly being addressed by putting in several 
restructures, changing working practices and shift patterns and 
investing in technology so that reductions in staff can be made 
permanent. He clarified that Surrey Police Group had to be 
smarter and more efficient with the resources currently available. 

 
9. A member raised that in the past the Panel had received an 

update on the relative strength of the Force’s establishment in 
particular areas and asked if the latest figure could be provided. 
The OPCC agreed to provide this.  
 

The Committee NOTED the report. 
 
Actions/requests for further information: 

• The Chief Finance Officer to provide more detail on the revenue 
reserves surplus of the force. 
 

• OPCC to provide an update on the strength of the force’s 
establishment in particular areas e.g. PCSOs. 

 
43/24 PERFORMANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY MEETINGS  [Item 12] 

 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined the purpose of the report.  
 

2. A member asked why no Performance and Accountability 
meetings had taken place since late 2023 when they were 
supposed to occur every six weeks. The PCC confirmed that 

Page 26

3



27 
 

regular scrutiny meetings were taking place, and formal 
meetings took place in January, March and July 2024. The next 
meeting was scheduled a couple of weeks after this Panel 
meeting, clarifying that there had been a small gap between 
meetings due to the PCC elections. Approach to the public 
meetings, which were historically webcasted, was being 
reviewed to balance holding the meetings and holding them 
publicly. She further stated that with the public events up to 
Christmas, the PCC was confident the public had ample 
opportunity to question the Chief Constable and raise concerns. 
Dates set aside for the public meetings were being used to 
continue the 6-weekly meetings with the Force. Work went into 
ensuring scrutiny meetings were well attended but it was 
recognized not everyone had time to watch the meetings. 
Therefore, the PCC stressed the importance of transparency 
and accessibility of the website and Data Hub. 
 

3. The member asked if the Chief Constable was making himself 
available for the scrutiny meetings. The PCC confirmed this was 
the case, and added she met with the Chief Constable at least 
once a week to discuss issues. 
 

The Panel NOTED the report. 
 

44/24 PCC FORWARD PLAN AND KEY DECISIONS  [Item 13] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. A member asked if the PCC could provide an update on the 
award of contract to a developer for Mount Browne 
Headquarters. The PCC explained that the tender process was 
intense, and a contractor had been selected. The contractor 
would be announced publicly as soon as it was appropriate.  

 
The Panel NOTED the report. 
 

45/24 COMMISSIONER'S QUESTION TIME  [Item 14] 
 
Witnesses: 
Lisa Townsend, Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 
Alison Bolton, Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer (OPCC) 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 

On the question received from Cllr Richard Wilson 
 

Page 27

3



28 
 

1. The PCC added that she was regularly updated on the early 
release of some prisoners by Surrey’s Gold Commander. There 
was one of the regular meetings of the Surrey Criminal Justice 
Board where the issue was discussed amongst all of Surrey’s 
criminal justice partners. Surrey was in a much better position 
than perhaps other forces, partly because Surrey had a relatively 
low number of prisoners released and had taken a proactive 
approach.  
 

2. A member asked if Surrey Police had a greater workload or was 
undermined due to failures in other public services such as the 
courts and probation. The PCC did not believe this was the 
case, stating that, particularly since Covid, ongoing court 
backlogs have been experienced. Surrey Police had charged 
3000 more offences than in the same period the year before. 

 
On questions received from Cllr Paul Kennedy 
 

3. On question 2 - The Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer 
explained that the principal difference from five years ago to the 
point which the PCC received the report was the steer the 
OPCC had from the previous government that it wanted fire 
governance to be in the hands of an elected individual. The 
report was received in early 2024. Then PCC elections took 
place, and there was since a change in government. She stated 
that it is not clear what the new government’s views are around 
fire governance. The PCC’s direction was that the review was 
not a priority to progress. 
 

4. On question 2 - A member asked if there was any significant 
change found in this piece of work - the PCC replied that there 
was not. The big change was the Home Office’s direction around 
fire governance. It felt wrong to focus on this work without any 
further direction form the government.  
 

5. On question 4 - A member raised that, from residents’ 
responses, a challenge seemed to be around why local 
authorities had to pay for this when CCTV was there to help the 
police, but simultaneously the public wanted CCTV to be funded. 
The PCC raised that CCTV was there to help all residents, 
regardless of who was providing it, though was not always as 
helpful as what some people thought, particularly given other 
tools available to the police. The PCC referred to the written 
response provided. 

 
46/24 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING  [Item 15] 

 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

Page 28

3



29 
 

1. The Chairman outlined that three complaints were received. Two 
were considered by the Complaints sub-committee, while one 
had the Complaints Protocol disapplied and was not considered. 
 

2. A member asked if the Panel was allowed to know what the 
outcome of the two complaints were. The PCC explained she 
had since written to one of the complainants. The Scrutiny 
Officer agreed to check the rules on disclosing the outcome of 
the complaints. 

 
The Panel NOTED the report. 
 

47/24 APPOINTMENT TO COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE  [Item 16] 
 
Key points raised during the discussion: 
 

1. The Chairman outlined that a nomination was received for Cllr 
Richard Wilson. No other nominations were received, and 
Chairman took this as general assent. 

 
The Panel AGREED to the appointment of Cllr Richard Wilson to the 
Complaints Sub-committee. 
 

48/24 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME  [Item 17] 
 
The Panel NOTED the Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work 
Programme. 
 

49/24 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  [Item 18] 
 
The next Public Panel meeting due to take place on 28 November 
2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at: 1.31 pm 

Chairman  

Page 29

3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30

3



 
 
 

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL  

28th November 2024 
 

 
Commissioning Update 

 

 
 

1. Summary 

 
1.1 One of the key roles of Police and Crime Commissioners is commissioning projects, 

services and activities geared towards promoting community safety, mitigating 
offending behaviour and providing support for victims of crime. 
 

1.2 During 2023/24 the OPCC managed over £6 million of funding to support this aim. A 
considerable portion of this funds Surrey-based charities and organisations, enabling 
the OPCC to offer support that aligns with the requirements of Surrey’s residents whilst 
fostering long-term local resilience.  

 
1.3 The Head of Policy and Commissioning will provide a presentation to the Panel 

at its meeting, setting out the OPCC’s commissioning activities in more detail. 
However, to provide greater context, this paper sets out the main funding 
streams used by the team to support local services. 

 

2. Victim Services 

 

2.1 In October 2014 Police and Crime Commissioners in England and Wales took on 
responsibility for the commissioning of support services for victims and witnesses of 
crime. This had previously been undertaken nationally by the MoJ. 

 

2.2 Each financial year, the MoJ devolves circa £1.4 million to the OPCC for Surrey, to 
support delivery of victim support services. In addition, the OPCC makes periodic bids 
for additional funding to government to support specific initiatives and has historically 
also used a proportion of its own internal budget to top-up this central funding. In 
Surrey, victims funding is allocated to two areas of delivery, both of which are open to 
all Surrey residents, irrespective of whether they have formally reported a crime to the 
police: 

 

2.2.1 Victim referral, assessment and local support service 

 

2.2.2 On 1 April 2019, the OPCC established a new Victim and Witness Care Unit 
(VAWCU), designed in collaboration with and operated by Surrey Police.  

 

Page 31

6

Item 6



2.2.3 This professionally trained team was established to help victims of crime cope 
and, as far as possible, recover from their experience, putting in place care plans 
tailored to the needs of the individual. All victims of crime in Surrey are 
automatically referred to the Unit at the point a crime is reported, with 
subsequent contact based on an individual’s need and vulnerability. Individuals 
can also self-refer or use the Unit’s dedicated website 
(https://victimandwitnesscare.org.uk) to find local specialist support services.  

 
2.2.4 The team also provides support to witnesses of crime, linking with other criminal 

justice agencies, departments and charitable organisations in order to obtain 
information and ensure individuals are kept informed about their case and 
possible attendance at court. At its heart, the VAWCU is designed to allow a truly 
end-to-end service for victims of crime, from initial contact through to court, and 
beyond if needed. 

 
2.2.5 The OPCC’s Head of Policy and Commissioning chairs the bi-monthly Victim and 

Witness Care Unit Governance Board, which oversees and supports the 
continued development and performance of the Unit.  

 

2.2.6 Specialist Support Services 

 

2.2.7 There are victims of crime and survivors who, due to the nature of their 
experience, circumstances or both, require more specialist, longer-term support 
to rebuild their lives. This includes individuals who suffer domestic abuse, rape 
and serious sexual offences, children and victims of modern slavery. 

 

2.2.8 Dedicated funding from the OPCC allows for the provision of this expert and 
targeted support, predominantly delivered by local independent organisations 
and third sector providers.  

 

3. The Reducing Reoffending Fund 

 
3.1 The RRF was introduced in 2018 to enable the OPCC to support a broad spectrum of 

services and projects aimed specifically at reducing reoffending in Surrey in line with 
its Reducing Reoffending Strategy. This has included a focus on key social factors 
such as a lack of housing, education training & employment, positive relationships, 
support for women who have experienced sexual or domestic abuse and substance 
misuse issues. 

 

4. Community Safety Fund 

 

4.1 The Community Safety Fund was introduced in 2013 to enable the Police and Crime 
Commissioner to commission and support services through grants that improve 
communities and tackle community safety concerns. Working alongside the Reducing 
Reoffending Fund and the Victim’s Fund, the CSF is flexible and helps meet the needs 
of communities. 

 

5. Children and Young People Fund 

 

5.1 Introduced in 2023, the Children and Young People Fund provides funding to local 
organisations that help children and young people to lead safe and fulfilling lives. 

Page 32

6



Support from the OPCC includes funding to protect children and young people from 
harm, reduce risks and create opportunities through education, training and work. 

 

6. Recommendations 

 

6.1 The Panel is asked to note the content of this report and the presentation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33

6



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL  

28th NOVEMBER 2024 
 

 
SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR THE PERIOD TO 30th SEPTEMBER 2024 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 

1. This report sets out the financial performance of the Surrey Police Group (i.e., 

OPCC and Chief Constable combined) as at the 30th of September 2024 with a 

forecast to the 31st of March 2025.  

 

2. It terms of revenue it is forecast that the Group will be £0.8m underbudget by the 

end of the year. This is due to the efforts made by the Force to keep driving 

ongoing savings and efficiency measures and will be used to mitigate the increase 

in base costs caused by continuing pay and non-pay inflation.   

 
3. Capital is forecast to be £2.5m under budget at the year end. Further details are 

given later on in this paper, 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4. The Police and Crime Panel is asked to note the content of the report and 

comment as appropriate. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/PAPERS/ANNEXES 
 
 
5. The attached report – Annexe A – sets out the performance in more detail. 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

 

Name:  Kelvin Menon  

Title:  Chief Financial Officer – Surrey OPCC 

Email:  kelvin.menon@surrey.police.uk 

  

Page 35

7

Item 7

mailto:kelvin.menon@surrey.police.uk


2 
 

Annexe A  
 

Financial Report as at 30th September 2024 
 

Projected Group Revenue Financial Performance for the Year 

 
1. The Surrey Police Group, which consists of the Force and the OPCC, is projected 

to be underbudget by £0.8m for the year as shown in the table below: 

 

Surrey Group 

 2024/25  

Annual 
Budget 

£m 

2024/25  

Forecast 
Outturn 

£m 

Variance 
£m 

Total 2024/25 Budget 310.3 310.5 0.2 

Funding (310.3) (311.3) (1.0) 

Grand Total 0.0 (1.3) (0.8) 

 

2. The £0.8m projected underspend is broken down further as follows: 

 

 2024/25 
Year to 

date 
£m 

 2024/25  
Annual 
Budget 

£m 

2024/25  
Forecast 
Outturn 

£m 

Variance 
£m 

Wages and 
Salaries 

136.3 257.9 259.6 1.7 

Premises 8.0 15.1 15.9 0.8 

Transport 3.0 5.1 5.0 (0.1) 

Supplies and 
Services 

16.7 36.0 35.7 (0.3) 

Capital Financing 
and Reserves 

6.8 9.6 11.0 1.4 

Grants and 
Income 

(12.2) (16.8) (20.1) (3.3) 

OPCC 3.7 3.4 3.4 (0.0) 

TOTAL 162.3 310.3 310.5 (0.2) 

 

  

Page 36

7



3 
 

 

3. Explanations for major variances over £0.5m are as follows: 

 

Wages and Salaries 

 

Included within this area is overtime which is predicted to be £2.6m overspent by 

the end of the year. Some of this is offset by other costs leading to an overall 

overspend for wages of £1.7m. A Force overtime group is looking at ways of 

reducing this spend and most of the expenditure is incurred in Local Policing.   

 

At the half year point the actual vacancy rate compared that budgeted is shown in 

the table below:   

 

 
 

The Force is confident that it will meet the requirements for the Uplift grant.  

 

Premises 

 

The overspend is in the main due to additional costs relating to the move from 

Reigate to Wray Park necessitated by the presence of RAAC within Reigate Police 

station.  

 

Financing and Reserves 

 

This relates to unbudgeted transfers to insurance reserves, surrey camera 

partnership and additional capital contributions. 

 

Grants and income 

 

This area is ahead of budget due to additional grant and income not budgeted for. 

These relate to hotspot policing (£0.8m), Mutual aid (£0.7m), SEROCU and 

CTPSE secondment income (£1.3m) and Investment Income (£0.4m). Some of 

this income is offset by costs in other areas. 

 

4. Funding is over budget due to money received from Government to fund the pay 

award (£2.1m) offset by a planned transfer from the Change Reserve which is no 

longer required this year. This money in the reserve can now be used on new 

Employees

Average of 

Employees 

FTE

Average 

Budget of 

Employees 

FTE

Average 

Variance FTE Variance %

Budget 

Vacancy %

Vacancy 

Factor FTE

Police Officers 2,222              2,241              19-                   (0.8)% (1.0)% (22)                  

Police Staff 1,796              2,003              207-                 (10.4)% (10.0)% (200)                

Total 4,018              4,244              226-                 (5.3)% (223)                

Page 37

7



4 
 

change projects which may come forward this year or towards next year’s 

program. 

 

 

Projected Capital Financial Performance  

 
5. The total budget for the year comprises the approved budget for 24/25 plus 

slippage from the previous year and adjustments in year. This is shown in the table 

below: 

 2024/25 

Budget 

£m 

2024/25 

Forecast 

£m 

2024/25 

Variance 

£m 

ICT  3.7 2.8 (0.9) 

Vehicles and Estates 7.8 7.8 0.0 

Specialist Crime 0.3 0.9 0.6 

Estates 25.6 24.2 (1.4) 

Operations 0.7 1.1 0.4 

Change program 1.2 0 (1.2) 

TOTAL 39.3 36.8 (2.5) 

 

6. Actual expenditure to date is £5.0m with Surrey Estates, principally the 

redevelopment of MTB, being behind plan – the budget for this for the year is 

£21m but only £0.3m has been spend so far. Hence there is a possibility that 

the some of the Capital plan will need to be reprofiled into 2025/26 which will 

also move the borrowing requirement into that year as well. As neither the 

Force nor PCC receive any funding for capital all of the current program so far 

has been funded out of capital receipts and revenue.  

 

Delivery of Savings 

 
7. The budget for 2024/25 included £3.8m of savings which were taken when the 

budget was set. Since then, an additional £1.2m of savings have been identified, 

meaning that the transfer from the cost of change reserves for transformation costs 

can be smaller leading to fund being available for further projects as identified.  The 

£1.2m of early identified savings can also contribute to the savings required for 

2025/26. 

  

Page 38

7



5 
 

8. The Medium-Term Financial Strategy indicates that at least £15.6m in savings will 

be required to balance the budget from 2023/24 to 2027/28 as follows: 

Forecast Funding Gaps - SURREY 
£23.5m 

2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 Four 
Year 

TOTAL 
£m £m £m £m £m 

Annual Savings Gap Requirement - 2024/25 
Q1.1 MTFF -3.8 -10.2 -5.5 -3.5 -4.2 -23.5 

Achieved Savings 3.8         0.0 

Overall Funding Gap 0.0 -10.2 -5.5 -3.5 -4.2 -23.5 

Tactical Savings 1.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 

Business Development Workshops 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 

Joint Force Change Programmes 0.1 2.1 3.3 0.1 0.0 5.5 

Change Delivery Projects 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Prior Year Over Achievement 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 

Total Savings Proposals 1.3 3.6 3.3 0.1 0.0 7.1 

Additional Savings Required 1.2 -6.6 -2.2 -3.4 -4.2 -16.4 

Additional Savings Required 0.0 -6.6 -2.2 -3.4 -4.2 -16.4 

 

9. The ongoing need to deliver savings is driven primarily by increases in pay and 

inflation which are rising faster than anticipated increases in funding – even with 

Council Tax increases. Although some savings initiatives have been identified 

there is work to do to deliver these and close the gap completely.   

Audit 

 
10. The audit for 2022/23 financial statements will be disclaimed in February as a result 

of legislation passed by the Government and not due to any decisions made by the 

PCC or CC. The 2023/24 audit is currently underway.      

Summary 

 
11. The projected underspend of £0.8m is equal to 0.25% of the overall budget. There 

are a number of areas that need attention, such as overtime and forensics, but 

overall, the performance against budget for this year looks to be on track. 

12. Furthermore, there has been a strategic finance approach to drive more savings 

in-year over and above those required when the budget was set in order to reduce 

the operating base cost in the following year. This so far has delivered an additional 

£1.2m of savings. 

13. Work is well underway to find the required savings to balance the budget for next 

year and beyond – indeed some savings have already been found in advance of 

2025/26. These is still a long way to go, and the force will need to maintain a 

Page 39

7



6 
 

reserve specifically to cover the requirement to balance the budget in the short 

term. How much this will be will depend on the funding settlement (and in particular 

how the additional NI is funded) and the level of Council Tax increase precepted. 

 

Page 40

7



 
 
 

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL  

28th November 2024 
 

 
Surrey Police Estates Update 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
1. This paper provides an update for the panel on the projects being undertaken to 

support the delivery of the Surrey Estates Strategy. 
 
PROJECTS 
 

Mount Browne Redevelopment 

 
2. Following the decision in 2021 to retain and redevelop the Force’s Headquarters at 

Mount Browne, wider implications for the entire force estate were reviewed, 
culminating in the development of the Estates Strategy.  The strategy makes clear the 
Force’s commitment to providing modern, efficient, sustainable and fit-for-purpose 
working environment across all its sites in the county.  One of the key projects within 
the strategy is the redevelopment of Mount Browne where the Force has been based 
for over 70 years.   

 
3. The outline business case for the redevelopment of Mount Browne (MTB) was 

approved by the Surrey Estates Board in January 2024. This gave authority to proceed 
to RIBA stage 3 and set a financial envelope of £110.5m to include fees and 
contingencies. It has been a long-standing objective of the PCC that the costs of the 
redevelopment of MTB should not impact adversely the funds currently available for 
front line services. Based on professional advice, the financial model assumes that 
50% or so of the costs will be funded from asset sales arising from the consolidation of 
the estate with the remainder funded through borrowing from the Public Works Loan 
Board. These loans would then be repaid using money saved due to reductions in 
running costs and maintenance of the new HQ when compared with the existing 
estate.  Both the cost of interest and MRP in accordance with the Prudential 
Framework have been allowed for in the financial model. The model predicts that all 
loans should all be repaid within 30 years, even though the assets themselves will 
have a longer life, but this will depend on interest rates, the timing of borrowing and the 
overall cost of the scheme.  
 

4. From a financial viewpoint, it only becomes financially advantageous to redevelop 
Mount Browne if the life of the new buildings exceeds 28 years or so. Up to that point it 
would be cheaper to retain the current estate with its associated maintenance and 
service costs. Given the new building should have a life of at least 50 years and that 
the current buildings may not even last a further 25, it makes economic sense to 

Page 41

8

Item 8



redevelop. In addition, the impact that a new fit-for-purpose HQ will have operationally 
is likely to be significant, as is the contribution of the new building to the Force’s 
ambition to reduce its carbon footprint.  
 

5. Two planning applications were submitted to Guildford Borough Council in April 2024. 
One of these was for a new access road and the other for the redevelopment of the 
main site. Following a lot of work with planning officers, the applications were 
considered by the planning committee on November 6th and were approved 
unanimously, pending the finalisation of the legal agreements on planning conditions 
and S106 agreement. The achievement of this major milestone means that the project 
team can now concentrate on delivery and in particular the scheduling of move and 
works to minimise any disruption to operations. 
 

6. The tender for the main contractor closed on 10th June 2024 and was conducted using 
the PAGABO framework. Prospective tenderers were required to submit a tender pack 
as well as prepare a presentation as to how they would deliver the project. Tenders 
were assessed on the basis of 70% technical and 30% price. Four companies made 
submissions and Wates came out as the clear winner from the evaluation panel 
scoring and the moderation process.  

 
7. Being Surrey based, Wates are well placed to engage with local subcontractors, where 

possible, as well as being able to deliver the social value benefits in terms of 
employment and training which one would expect from a development of this size. 
Wates are also confident, based on the specification shared with them, that they 
should be able to achieve practical completion by end of 2029.  

 
8. Contract terms are being finalised at the moment and the contract is due to be signed 

shortly. It is envisaged that work on the new access road, dog school, dog school 
accommodation and sports pavilion extension will commence in the new year and 
once that is in place, phase one will start soon after.  The phasing strategy is set out in 
Appendix 1 in map form. 

 
9. The contract is a design and build contract and each stage has to be agreed by both 

parties before it can proceed. This gives the Force/PCC the opportunity to modify the 
overall plan to take account of changing organisational requirement and/or financial 
constraints. Wates are confident that by assessing the benefits of using modern 
construction methods, such as prefabrication off site for the car park, practical 
completion can possibly be improved upon thereby shortening the program and the 
costs.     
 

10. An artist’s impression of the latest iteration of proposed Campus is shown below: 
 

Page 42

8



  

 

  

Page 43

8



Divisional Accommodation Strategy 

 

11. As a result of the need to move out of Reigate Police Station due to RAAC, a review 
was undertaken with operational colleagues to look at how divisional requirements could 
be standardised in the future. Following a meeting with senior officers in each division 
the following was deemed to be the optimum requirement in each division (of which 
there are currently three – North, West and East Surrey):  
 
- A Divisional HQ, located centrally within the Division. This would house the 

Divisional Senior Management Team, Divisional investigation teams, coaching 
teams and specialist Divisional teams such as High Harm Perpetrators Unit (HHPU) 
 

- A divisional central response unit housing all neighbourhood response teams, ideally 
co-located with Divisional HQ with some latitude by Divisional Commanders to 
house more than one based on the geography of the Division. Neighbourhood 
Response Teams will ‘parade’ from this facility but during shift will utilise the Safer 
Neighbourhood offices. 
 

- In order to maintain a physical Policing presence in each Borough and District, a 
Safer Neighbourhoods team will be based in each one with space to accommodate 
the Neighbourhood response shift teams. 

 
- As a minimum, each division would have a Front County Facility providing access for 

members of the public and there would be no reduction in the number of locations 
already provided with a front counter. 

 
12. It is this strategy that has therefore informed the Eastern divisional strategy that is set 

out in the next section. 

 

Eastern Division Accommodation Strategy 
 

13. The discovery of RAAC concrete in Reigate Police station has necessitated a full rethink 
on the location and use of accommodation across the eastern Division. Although SCC 
have been very helpful in providing accommodation at short notice at Wray Park from 
some of the divisional teams, they have made it clear that they will require the Force to 
vacate by early/mid 2026 as they have their own development plans for the site. 
 

14. As a result, a review was done of potential sites for a new divisional HQ across the 
easter division. Specific operational requirements were as follows: 

 

• Easy access to the strategic road network 

• Reasonably central within the division 

• Parking for a minimum of 86 operational cars plus staff parking 

• 214 workspaces to accommodate almost 500 staff 

• Meeting rooms, kit storage, lockers, restricted access areas 
 

15. A new divisional HQ, along with the supporting accommodation plans for the other 
Boroughs and Districts unlocks a number of opportunities for the Force, not least the 
disposal of Caterham Police station in line with the development of a new PCC-owned 
site in Godstone offsetting the cost of a new facility. Reigate Police station is already on 
the market to provide further funding. 
   

Page 44

8



16. The force’s property advisors undertook a review across all of the Eastern Division for 
potential accommodation that could meet these requirements. Although there were a 
number of commercial properties that were large enough none of them included 
sufficient parking on site.  
 

17. Rather than acquiring a building that does not meet all of the operational requirements, 
the ownership by the PCC of a site in Leatherhead meant that there was an opportunity 
to build a bespoke divisional headquarters there. This could be constructed to meet the 
Force’s needs precisely and have adequate parking provided as part of the plan. 
Leatherhead is also well placed for access to the M25 other main roads. 

 
18. To ensure that neighbourhood teams retain a base in each borough and district a 

property will be acquired in Reigate and Banstead to replace Caterham and Reigate 
with further teams being based in premises in Tandridge and Epsom and Ewell.  Mole 
Valley would be served by the divisional HQ in Leatherhead.    

 
19. Work is currently being undertaken to assess what the cost of a new facility would be, 

but early indications are that it should be cost neutral given the capital receipts and 
revenue savings this should deliver.  

 

Custody 

 

20. A review is being undertaken as to the Force’s future custody requirements. At the 
moment there are custody suites in Staines, Guildford and Salfords. However, the 
anticipated disposal of Guildford Police station and the potential to redevelop Staines 
Police station has started the discussion as to whether there should be a super custody 
suite serving the north and west divisions. Operational colleagues are looking at the 
number of cells required with a view to futureproofing requirements looking forward. A 
specialist architectural company has been appointed post a tender exercise – the 
successful company has delivered the bulk of all new custody facilities nationally over 
the last 5 years and so is well placed to advise us on the best solution.  
 

21. In addition, the Force’s property advisors have been conducting a site search that could 
accommodate such a facility and also is looking at the feasibility of whether this could be 
combined with a new North divisional HQ.  It will not surprise members that finding a site 
in NW surrey that is of suitable size, is accessible and affordable is quite an ask but the 
search is continuing.  

 

 
Housing Strategy 
 

22. Work on the housing strategy is progressing in three core areas: 
 

• The refurbishment of the retained housing stock is virtually complete. 

• This has been funded by the sale of surplus housing stock. 15 have been sold or are 
under offer.   

23. The Estates team are looking at the current estate to see where affordable 
accommodation for newer officers could be provided, possibly as part of the divisional 
hub proposals.  

 

9 CONTACT INFORMATION 

 

Page 45

8



 Kelvin Menon – Chief Finance Officer 

 Email: Kelvin.menon@surrey.police.uk 

  

Page 46

8



Appendix 1 

 

Mount Brown Phasing Strategy 

 

 

 

 

Page 47

8



This page is intentionally left blank



Contact: Jake Chambers 

Tel: 07971 663 794  

E-mail: jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Woodhatch Place, 
11 Cockshot Hill, 
Reigate, 
Surrey 
RH2 8EF 
 
2 October 2024 

 
Sent via Email. 
  

 
Dear Commissioner,  
 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey Annual Report 2023-2024 
 
Thank you for meeting with the Surrey Police and Crime Panel on 26 September 2024 to 
discuss the content of your Annual Report 2023-24. The Panel appreciated the ability to 
discuss the variety of issues raised in the report and found the discussion useful and 
informative. We agreed to reflect after the session and to respond in writing with any specific 
comments or recommendations regarding the Report. These are as follows:   

 

➢ The Panel is concerned that the report does not provide an assessment of 
performance against KPIs, RAG rating or other similar measures to provide a 
clear and objective assessment of performance against stated objectives. 
Members noted that the datahub was available to residents and provides a valuable 
snapshot of performance at a given point in time, but does not substitute for a formal 
analysis of performance against targets over the course of a performance year.  The 
Panel felt that the Annual Report should enable residents to understand whether the 
objectives set out in the Police and Crime Plan have been met.  Quantitative 
performance measures should be included in a consistent manner to give a complete 
picture. The Panel asks that this is addressed in future annual reports. 

 

➢ The report should include greater information on the attainment against the 
constituent objectives of each of the Commissioner’s headline aims. The Panel 
noted the absence of the specific objectives that make up each of the 5 headline aims, 
and welcomed the fact that work is underway within the OPCC to review how these are 
presented and reported on. It was agreed that transparency and reference to these was 
important for residents and the Panel ask that these also feature in the Commissioner’s 
future annual reports. 

 
➢ The report should include an update on the work of the Surrey Domestic Violence 

Hub. The Commissioner committed to provide this in future reports after members 
congratulated her on the important work of the Surrey Steps to Change Hub. 

 
➢ The report should provide a balanced picture of performance reflecting the range 

of issues and concerns raised in the most recent PEEL inspection by His 
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services. The Panel 
recommends that the report is amended to address this point. 

 

Page 49

9

Item 9



2 

 
On behalf of the Panel, I would like to thank you once again for attending the meeting. We 
look forward to our informal session with the Chief Constable in October and receiving the 
draft Police and Crime Plan at our next public meeting in November. The Panel will consider 
the formation of a sub-group to consider the draft Police and Crime Plan in more detail 
around this time. I have asked my officers to liaise with yours about setting this up. If you 
have any questions regarding the above comments, please do not hesitate to communicate 
them to me via the Panel’s Scrutiny Officer, Jake Chambers.   
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 

 
 
 
Councillor John Robini  
 
Chairman of the Surrey Police and Crime Panel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 50

9



 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
SENT BY EMAIL 
 
 

17 October 2024 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor Robini, 
 
RE: Police and Crime Commissioner for Surrey Annual Report 2023-2024 
 
Thank you for your letter dated 2 October 2024, setting out the Police and Crime Panel’s views on 
the content of my Annual Report 2023/24. 
 
I note that all but one of the recommendations relate to the content of future annual reports, and I 
will take these views into consideration when the time comes. 
 
With regard to the Panel’s recommendation that the current annual report be updated to include a 
more detailed summary of the last HMICFRS PEEL inspection, I do not feel this is necessary. 
 
A comprehensive response to the PEEL report is already available on the OPCC website, and a 
link to this is included in the Annual Report. Adding more information to the Annual Report itself 
would simply be duplicative. 
 
I would however like to thank the Panel for its feedback and I will look to publish the final version 
very shortly. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Lisa Townsend 
Police and Crime Commissioner 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 51

9



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

PCC Forward Plan and Key Decisions 
 

28th November 2024 

 
SUMMARY 

This report provides information on the key decisions taken by the PCC from 
September 2024 to present and sets out details of the Office’s ongoing Forward 
Plan for 2024. 

 

Decision Making and Accountability Framework  

The Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC) has in place a framework of governance, 
underpinned by mechanisms for control and management of risk.  This framework 
enables her to discharge her statutory responsibilities, take decisions and hold the 
Chief Constable to account.  The PCC will keep this system under review to ensure 
it remains fit for purpose. It is reviewed on an annual basis.  

 

Forward Plan 2024 

The PCC gives advance notice to the public of when certain decisions will be 
taken, or key pieces of work undertaken through the publication of a forward plan. 
This plan is updated on a regular basis by all staff within the OPCC for their 
relevant areas of work. A copy of this plan can be found on the PCC’s website and 
is shown at Appendix A. Some, but not all items on the forward plan will result in 
the publication of a ‘key decision’.   

 

Decisions: Making and Publicising Key Decisions  

The PCC is required by the Elected Local Policing Bodies (Specified Information) 
Order 2011 (as amended), to publish a ‘record of each decision of significant public 
interest arising from the exercise of the (the PCC’s) functions’. We refer to these 
as “key decisions” and these are published on our website so they can then be 
scrutinised by the public and the Police and Crime Panel (PCP).  

 

Detailed information on each key decision is published at the following link on the 
PCC’s website https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/commissioners-decisions/ unless the 
information relating to the decision is sensitive and exempt from public 
consumption. In these cases, the records are kept solely within the PCC’s office.  

 

All key decisions are recorded on our decision log. The PCC has signed off seven 
key decisions since the last Panel meeting (see Appendix B).  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Panel is asked to note the report.  
 
 

Page 53

10

Item 10

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-committees/list-of-committees-and-officers/surrey-police-and-crime-panel
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/commissioners-decisions/


OFFICIAL 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Gordon, PA to the PCC  
 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 

 
01483 630 200 

Page 54

10

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-committees/list-of-committees-and-officers/surrey-police-and-crime-panel


OFFICIAL 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

Appendix A - OPCC FORWARD PLAN 2024/2025 

 

DATE TITLE KEY DECISION/ ACTION LEAD 
OFFICER 

September – 
November 2024 

Consultation on Police and Crime 
Plan – with partner agencies 

To inform the PCC’s new 
Police and Crime Plan 

DM 

September 2024 Statement of Accounts 2023/24 PCC to approve and sign off 
statement of accounts for 
2023/24 

KM 

October 2024 2025 Meetings Arrange statutory meetings 
for 2025 

PAs 

December 2024 Surrey Criminal Justice Board Agenda and Papers SG 

December 2024 Joint Audit Committee Agenda and Papers SG 

December 2024 Public consultation on council tax 
precept 

 NR 

February 2025 Approval of Council Tax Precept, 
Revenue and Capital Budgets for 
2025/26 

 KM 

February 2025 Annual review of Related Party 
Disclosures and of disclosable 
interests 

Necessary forms to be 
completed 

SG 

March 2025 Joint Audit Committee Agenda and Papers SG  

March 2025 Surrey Criminal Justice Board Agenda and Papers SG 

P
age 55

10

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-committees/list-of-committees-and-officers/surrey-police-and-crime-panel


OFFICIAL 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

April 2025 Annual review of Scheme of 
Governance 

To review suite of 
documents and PCC to sign 
off 

AB/KM 

April 2025 Approval of Treasury Management 
and MRP Statement 

PCC to sign off KM 

June 2025 Independent Representatives 
Attendance Allowance Schemes 
2025/26 

Annual review RL 

June 2025 Joint Audit Committee Agenda and Papers SG 

June 2025 Surrey Criminal Justice Board Agenda and Papers SG 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 56

10

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-committees/list-of-committees-and-officers/surrey-police-and-crime-panel


OFFICIAL 

Surrey Police and Crime Panel 

Appendix B - OPCC Decision Log 2024/25 

 

 

                 TOTAL: £428,376.00 

Decision 

no.
Title

Date 

Submitted 

to PCC

Lead officer
Agreed by 

PCC
Date Agreed

Protective 

marking 

(OFFICIAL/

OFFICIAL 

SENSITIVE

)

Publishe

d on 

website?

Spend

27 Sale of Houses 20/09/2024 Kevin Menon Yes 25/09/2024

Official  

Sensitve
No NA

28 Children and Young People Fund Grants 03/10/2024 Molly Slominski Yes 03/10/2024 Official Yes £37,390.00

29 Our Plan Operating model resourcing 04/10/2024 Kelvin Menon Yes 23/10/2024 Official Yes NA

30 Safer Streets 5 21/10/2024 Lauren McAlister Yes 23/10/2024 Official   Yes £352,986.00

31 Clear, Hold, Build 25/10/2024 Lauren McAlister Yes 07/11/2024 Official Yes £38,000.00

32 Allowance Scheme Amendment re LQP and IPM August 2024 25/10/2024 Rachel Lupanko Yes 07/11/2024 Official Yes NA

33 Award of contract for development of Eastern Divisional HQ 04/11/2024 Kelvin Menon Yes 07/11/2024

Official 

Sensitive
No NA

P
age 57

10

http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-committees/list-of-committees-and-officers/surrey-police-and-crime-panel


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
28 NOVEMBER 2024 

 
 

 
SURREY PCP BUDGET MID-YEAR CLAIM 2024 

 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The Surrey Police and Crime Panel has accepted a grant from the Home Office to meet 
the costs of the Panel, including the administrative support. This purpose of this paper is 
to report on the use of the grant in 2024 (April 2024 - September 2024), as noted in the 
Panel’s mid-year claim submission to the Home Office submitted by the 6 September 
2024 deadline.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Police and Crime Panel is asked to note the report. 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 In establishing Police and Crime Panels, the Home Office agreed that a limited 
grant would be provided to each local authority acting as the host authority in 
providing the administrative support and management and maintaining the Police 
and Crime Panel. The host authority for the Surrey PCP is Surrey County 
Council. 

 

1.2 The Panel’s arrangements, agreed with the Home Office in 2013, stated that: 
 
The annual costs associated with the operation, organisation and administration 
for the Panel shall be offset by the Home Office grant to be managed by the host 
authority. All of the relevant costs incurred by the host authority in connection 
with the work of the Panel shall be met from the funding allocated by the Home 
Office unless the authorities agree otherwise. The host authority shall monitor all 
expenditure incurred and make provision for an annual report. 

 

2.0 HOME OFFICE GRANT 2022 MID-YEAR CLAIM  

 

2.1 The Home Office grant available for the 2024 mid-year claim is £33,090 (total 
grant = £66,180). The grant is paid by the Home Office in two instalments over 
the year and only spending relating to the two six-month periods can be claimed. 
Any underspend must be returned to the Authority (Home Office) and any 
overpayment of grant will be recovered. 

2.2 The actual expenditure for April 2024 – September 2024 is therefore: 

 
 Table 1: Expenditure breakdown for 2024 (mid-year claim) 
 

Page 59

12

Item 12



 

 

 £ Details 

Meeting costs – webcasting, 
printing and postage 

1,159.86 
 

Includes cost of webcast 
software per hour, operator and 
meeting support  

Travel expenses 
157.43  Panel Members and/or 

Democratic Services Officers 

Training 
0 [Conference costs to be 

reflected in next return] 

Subsistence 0  

External legal expenses 0  

Other expenses 420  

SCC overheads 8,773.52  

SUB TOTAL 10,510.81  

Employee Costs (see breakdown 
in table 2) 

     
21,150.04  

 

This includes NI contributions 
and pension costs 

TOTAL 31,661 (rounded) 

 
 
Table 2: Employee Costs breakdown 2024 (mid-year claim) 
 

 £ Details 

Democratic Services Officers 18211.42 
 

This is based on the 
percentage of salary costs of 
the supporting officers: 1X50% 
and 1X33% of FTE 

Managers 1,932.79 This equates to 8.5 days 

Legal 685.21 This equates to 0.5 days 

Accountants 320.63 This equates to 2 days. 

TOTAL 21,150 (rounded) 

 

3.0 DETAIL ON PANEL EXPENDITURE APRIL 2024 TO SEPTEMBER 2024 
 

a) Panel administration (including meeting expenses) 
 

3.1 Costs for panel administration as detailed in Tables 1 and 2 include webcasting, 
printing and postage, travel and legal costs, Surrey County Council (SCC) 
overheads employee costs. Some Panels have appointed a full-time officer to 
support the Panel; within Surrey a number of officers have some involvement in 
the Panel, but none works on it full-time.   

 
3.2 The apportioned costs for time spent by officers and their associated overheads 

will be reclaimed against the Home Office grant and will amount to £21,150.05 
for the 2024 mid-year claim.  Officer time and support for the Panel is constantly 
reviewed and monitored in the light of changes to its workload, with assistance 
provided by managers and lawyers where necessary, particularly in resolving 
complaints. Staffing Costs have increased on last year with the assignment of a 
new Democratic Services Assistant to support the Panel in line with historic 
arrangements.   

 
3.4  Aside from employee costs the biggest area of expenditure is SCC overheads 

which account for £8,773.52 this has also increased on last year due to inflation.  

Page 60

12



 

Meeting costs (£1,159.86) include the cost of the webcast software per hour, the 
operator and meeting support, and the printing and postage costs for all 
committee and sub-committee meetings including letters to respond to 
complainants and other correspondence. The cost of agenda and 
correspondence printing will vary depending on the number of pages, any colour 
copying and how the papers are collated.  

 
b) Member expenses 

3.5 Members of the Panel can claim expenses in line with Surrey County Council’s 
Members’ Allowances Scheme for travel, subsistence, and for childcare and the 
care of other dependants. Claims from Panel members for costs involved with 
attendance at Panel and Sub-Committee meetings are £157.43. These may 
relate to meetings that took place before the claim period where claims were 
made later, within the claim period. Equally, some costs for Travel expenses 
accrued for the Panel meetings within the claim period may be charged after 
September and rolled over into the end of year claim.  

 

c) Allowances 
3.6 In January 2013 the Panel agreed that Members would not use the Home Office 

grant to draw allowances for members of the Panel.   
 
3.7 At the Council AGM on 25 May 2018 it was agreed that the Special 

Responsibility Allowance for scrutiny of the Police and Crime Commissioner is 
abolished, and the concept of a ‘Lead Member’ abandoned and replaced by the 
designation of an ‘SCC Representative’. In addition, the Police and Crime Panel 
should be invited to use its powers to review any allowances to be paid.  

 

4.0 WEBCASTING 

 

4.1 Each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel is webcast live for public viewing. 
Table 3 below shows the numbers of views both live and post-meeting. In 
general viewing figures for the webcast are somewhat up on last year, when the 
highest number of archive viewings of a webcast was 52. 

 

Table 3: Webcasting stats to September 2024     

 
*Hits: Total number of views 
**Live: Views that happened as the meeting was occurring 
***Archive: Views that occurred post meeting 

 

5.0 TRANSPARENCY 
 
5.1  Under the Home Office grant agreement, PCPs must “publish as a minimum on 

their website, details of all their expenditure (or, where that is not possible, on the 
host authority’s website).” This requirement is met through publication of this 
report.  

 
 

Title Live Date Hits* Live** Archive*** Recording Time 

PCP 2 February 2024 117 24 93 2hr13m 

PCP 20 June 2024 146 19 127 1hr25m 

PCP 26 September 2024 124 19 105 2hr48m 

Page 61

12



 

 
6.0 ON-GOING HOME OFFICE FUNDING  
 
6.1 The Home Office grant has been confirmed for 2024/25 as £66,180. 
 

6.2  The Panel’s Outturn Forecast will be sent to the Home Office by 31 January 
2025 and the end of year claim including expenditure between April 2024 - 
March 2025 will be submitted to the Home Office by 27 June 2025, and reported 
to the panel thereafter. 

 

7.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

• Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

• Grant agreement between Secretary of State for the Home Department and 
Surrey County Council. 

 
 
 
Contact Officer: Jake Chambers, Scrutiny Officer, Surrey County Council 
Telephone Number: 07971 663 794 
Email: jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

Page 62

12

mailto:jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk


SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

28 November 2024 
 

 

COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING 
 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
This report sets out all complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner that have been 
dealt with since the last meeting of the Police and Crime Panel. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Police and Crime Panel is asked to note the content of the report. 
 
1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) Regulations 2012 make 

Surrey’s Police and Crime Panel responsible for overseeing complaints made about the 
conduct of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 
  

1.2 The Panel has a responsibility to informally resolve non-criminal complaints about the 
conduct of the PCC, as well as criminal complaints or conduct matters that are referred to 
it by the Independent Office for Police Conduct.  

 
1.3 In accordance with the Regulations, complaints received by the Panel that do not relate to 

the conduct of the PCC (such as operational concerns and policy disputes) are referred to 
the most appropriate body for resolution instead of the Complaints Sub-Committee. 

 
1.4 At its meeting on 13 December 2012 the Panel agreed to delegate informal resolution of 

complaints to a Complaints Sub-Committee.  A revised Complaints Protocol agreed by the 
Panel on 26 September 2022 delegated initial receipt and filtering of complaints to the 
Chief Executive of the PCC’s Office.   

 
1.5 The Chief Executive is responsible for determining whether to disapply the informal 

resolution process in accordance with statutory criteria for disapplication (for example 
where the complaint is ‘repetitious’, ‘vexatious’, ‘oppressive’ or an ‘abuse of procedures’). 
The Sub-Committee has the option of calling in such a decision. 

 

2. COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING 

 

2.1. Since the last meeting of the Panel, the Complaints Sub-Committee have not received 
any complaints made against the Commissioner.  

 
2.2. No complaints against the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner have been received. 

 

Page 63

13

Item 13



LEAD OFFICER: Jake Chambers – Scrutiny Officer, Surrey County 
Council 

 
EMAIL / TELEPHONE: 

 
07971 663 794 / jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk 

 

Page 64

13

mailto:jake.chambers@surreycc.gov.uk


 
 
 

   

SURREY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

28 November 2024 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK 
PROGRAMME 

 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The updated Recommendations Tracker and Forward Work Programme are 
presented at each meeting of the Police and Crime Panel. The Recommendations 
Tracker lists all the information requested by the Panel at previous meetings. 
Substantial updates or reports relating to those actions are contained in the annex to 
the tracker. The Forward Work Programme is for Panel Members to discuss the 
details of items they wish to see at future meetings and the most relevant time to 
receive the reports.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. For the Police and Crime Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning the 
information received on the Recommendations Tracker and to discuss the 
Work Programme to ensure the timeliness of reports to future meetings.  
 

2. For the Panel to note that consideration of the Draft Police and Crime Plan 
2025-28 has been scheduled for the meeting of 3 February 2025. This is 
coming later than usual due to public consultation, as the OPCC sought to 
ensure that a draft plan did not come before the Panel until all key 
stakeholders had been consulted. This meets the Panel’s responsibility to 
review the draft plan, as set out below: 
 

a. To review the draft police and crime plan, or draft variation, given to the 
Panel by the Police & Crime Commissioner (PCC) and make a report 
and recommendations to the PCC, who must have regard to them. 

 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Recommendations Tracker  
Appendix 2: Forward Work Programme 
 
 
 
 

Page 65

14

Item 14



 
 
 

LLEAD OFFICER: Jake Chambers, Scrutiny Officer, Surrey County 
Council 

 
E-MAIL: 

 
Jake.Chambers@surreycc.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 66

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

ACTIONS TRACKER 
 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

2 February 
2024 

6/24 HMICFRS 
PEEL 
INSPECTION INTO 
SURREY POLICE 
[Item 6] 

Action i: The Commissioner 
to update the panel on the 
new deployment and 
grading system, once 
complete. 
 

OPCC Update provided to September meeting as part of 
full PEEL update. 
 
Implementation of report’s recommendations 
continue to be monitored and assessed. 
 

2 February 
2024 

6/24 HMICFRS 
PEEL 
INSPECTION INTO 
SURREY POLICE 
[Item 6] 

Action ii: The 
Commissioner to pass onto 
the Chief and Borough 
Commanders that Public 
Space Protection Orders 
are something that can be 
implemented in boroughs 
and districts if there is a 
particular problem with 
ASB. 

OPCC Awaiting response from OPCC. 

P
age 67

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

26 
September 
2024 

PUBLIC 
QUESTIONS [Item 
5] 

The PCC to write to the 

Panel in response to Cllr 

Ashely Tilling’s 

supplementary question, 

asked by Cllr Paul 

Kennedy. 

 
Supplementary 
Question: 
Several of the Surrey BIDs 
that already had DISC, 
paid for by their levies, 
were waiting for the direct 
link into Surrey police for 
ease of reporting incidents 
and to encourage more 
businesses to engage. 
Can Surrey Police commit 
to creating the direct link 
for more Surrey BID DISC 
systems into their own 
system and provide a 
schedule for this? 

OPCC Response from the OPCC Head of Performance 
and Governance (received 20 November 2024): 
 
“I understand that Surrey Police is currently looking 
at integration between DISC and their own systems. 
As outlined at the meeting, I am informed that this 
request is being actively progressed and primarily 
led by the Digital, Data and Technology Team. 
Technical specifications are being exchanged and 
an early estimate for direct integration is January 
2025 - although this is subject to there being no 
significant issues discovered and joint agreement 
on contact and crime management processes 
following a report.” 
 

P
age 68

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

 
 

26 
September 
2024 

POLICE AND 
CRIME PLAN 
CONSULTATION 
METHODOLOGY 
[Item 6] 

OPCC to provide the 

absolute values for the 

number of participants 

involved in the focus 

groups and surveys, as 

well as for each response 

category once the 

consultation is completed. 

 

OPCC OPCC response (received 20 November 2024): 
 
“This will be provided as part of the final report 
brought to the PCP.” 

26 
September 
2024 

POLICE AND 
CRIME PLAN 
CONSULTATION 
METHODOLOGY 
[Item 6] 

The Head of Performance 

and Governance to share 

the consultation survey 

with panel members. 

 

The Head of 
Performance and 

Governance/OPCC 

OPCC response (received 20 November 2024): 
 
“This has now been done. Police and Crime Plan | 
Police & Crime Commissioner for Surrey (surrey-
pcc.gov.uk)” 
 

P
age 69

14

https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan/consultation-2024/
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan/consultation-2024/
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/police-and-crime-plan/consultation-2024/


POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

26 
September 
2024 

POLICE AND 
CRIME 
COMMISSIONER 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2023/24 [Item 7] 

PCC/OPCC to provide 

update on what was 

achieved in-year on the 

work of the Surrey 

Domestic Violence Hub in 

the next annual report. 

 

OPCC OPCC response (received 20 November 2024): 
 
OPCC noted this action and will provide in the next 
annual report. 

26 
September 
2024 

POLICE AND 
CRIME 
COMMISSIONER 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2023/24 [Item 7] 

OPCC to produce a future 

update on the progress 

made in regard to rural 

domestic abuse. 

 

OPCC OPCC noted this action and will await scheduling 
request from SCC. 

26 
September 
2024 

POLICE AND 
CRIME 
COMMISSIONER 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2023/24 [Item 7] 

The DPCC to provide a 

written a breakdown of 

veteran’s work and Surrey 

Police- specifically on the 

status of a potential 

Veteran-specific route into 

Surrey policing, which was 

previously being 

considered. 

OPCC OPCC are liaising with panel support officers with 
regards to format and timing. 

P
age 70

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

 

26 
September 
2024 

HMICFRS PEEL 
INSPECTION 
UPDATE [Item 8] 

To clarify: How will AFI 1 

(force is too often failing to 

record sexual offences, 

particularly sexual assault, 

and rape crimes) and 

detail of the performance 

management measures, 

training programme and 

longer-term sustainable 

model being implemented 

for this be updated on for 

the Panel? Will this be a 

future report? 

OPCC OPCC are liaising with panel support officers with 
regards to format and timing. 

P
age 71

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

26 
September 
2024 

SURREY POLICE 
RECRUITMENT 
AND 
WORKFORCE 
PLANNING 
UPDATE [Item 9] 

The PCC/OPCC to provide 

updates on the strategic 

issues regarding the 

enhanced scrutiny 

arrangements around 

misconduct hearings, as 

part of the standing 

workforce planning update 

item. 

OPCC OPCC response (received 20 November 2024):: 
 
“The OPCC noted this action and will look to include 
in future items.” 

26 
September 
2024 

MEDIUM-TERM 
FINANCIAL PLAN 
UPDATE 2024/25 
TO 2027/28 [Item 
10] 

The Chief Finance Officer 

to share the scenario 

modelling on the 

pessimistic and optimistic 

versions of the MTFS. 

 

The Chief Finance 
Officer/OPCC 

OPCC response (received 20 November 2024): 
 
“The Chief Finance and S151 Officer will include 
this additional information in future MTFS reports.” 
 
Additional information was provided for members of 
the Panel. 
 

26 
September 
2024 

SURREY POLICE 
GROUP 
UNAUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
REPORT 2023/24 
[Item 11] 

The Chief Finance Officer 

to provide more detail on 

the revenue reserves 

surplus of the force. 

 

The Chief Finance 
Officer/OPCC 

OPCC response (received 20 November 2024): 
 
Additional information was provided for members of 
the Panel. 
 

P
age 72

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

Meeting Item Action Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

26 
September 
2024 

SURREY POLICE 
GROUP 
UNAUDITED 
FINANCIAL 
REPORT 2023/24 
[Item 11] 

OPCC to provide update 

on the strength of the 

force’s establishment in 

particular areas e.g. 

PCSOs. 

 

OPCC Response from the OPCC Head of Performance 
and Governance (received 20 November 2024): 
 
The Head of Performance & Governance (OPCC) 
will ensure that these are provided in future 
workforce planning papers. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 
 
 

Meeting Item Recommendation Responsible 
Officer/Member 

Update/Response 

November 
2023 

PROGRESS 
ON POLICE 
AND CRIME 
PLAN 2021-
2025 [Item 
8] 

I. The Surrey Police and Crime Panel 
applauds the achievements of the OPCC 
as set out in the report including securing 
additional Safer Streets funding to tackle 
crime and anti-social behaviour, plus £2 
million in funding for a new Domestic 
Abuse Hub in Surrey. Both will make a 
real difference to Surrey residents. 
However, we note with some concern the 
drop in Grade 1 response compliance. 
The Surrey PCP recommends that the 
Commissioner prioritises resolution 
of this issue working with the Chief 
Constable and that the issue of Grade 
1 response compliance remains on the 
agenda of forthcoming Performance 
meetings until such a time as there is 
a marked and sustained improvement 
in performance.  

OPCC OPCC response (received 24 January 2024):  
 
Following the recent HMICFRS PEEL inspection, 
the force received an 'inadequate' grading for its 
response to the public, highlighting two Causes of 
Concern (CoCos).  
 
One of the CoCos emphasises the need for 
improvement in the force's response to incidents, 
specifically requiring Surrey Police to attend calls 
for service in accordance with its published 
attendance times and ensure effective supervision 
of deployment decisions within the control room. 
In response, Surrey Police is reforming its 

Deployment and Gradings structure. This new 

framework aims to introduce a more nuanced 

system with additional grades and realistic 

attendance targets compared to the previous 

framework. This is an ongoing piece of work and 

the Panel will be provided with an update once 

complete. 

P
age 74

14



POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER  

November 2024 

The actions and recommendations tracker allows Panel Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their recommendations or 
requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each meeting. Once an action has been completed, it will be shaded green to indicate 

that it will be removed from the tracker at the next meeting. 
 

KEY     

No Progress Reported Recommendation/Action In Progress Recommendation/Action 
Implemented 

 

 

2 
February 
2024 

6/24 
HMICFRS 
PEEL 
INSPECTION 
INTO 
SURREY 
POLICE 
[Item 6] 

Notes that the Inspection report 
highlights areas of good performance 
(preventing crime, managing offenders) 
but also a number of areas for 
improvement that have been highlighted 
by the Panel including around call 
performance and response compliance. 
Expresses its concern that ‘responding to 
the public’ is currently assessed as 
inadequate and asks the 
Commissioner to report to the Panel in 
June 2024 on progress addressing this 
and other ‘Areas for Improvement’, and 
on assurances sought from the Chief 
Constable. Further notes the importance 
of ensuring Surrey Police is equipped 
and resourced to address these 
concerns. 

OPCC A report on progress addressing the HMICFRS 
PEEL inspection recommendations will be taken 
at the September 2024 Panel meeting.  This has 
been deferred in light of the pre-election period with 
the agreement of Monitoring Officers.  

 

P
age 75

14



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Surrey Police and Crime Panel - Forward Work Programme 2024/25 
 

The purpose of this document is to provide a summary of work due to be undertaken by the Surrey Police and Crime Panel. It is provided for 
information purposes at each meeting of the Panel and updated between meetings by officers to reflect any future areas of work. Members can 

suggest items for consideration to the Chairman or the Panel Support Officer. 
 
 

 ITEM Police and 
Crime Plan 

Priority 
 

PURPOSE OFFICER 

03 February 2025 

1 Surrey Police Group 
Financial Report For 
Month Eight Of 
Financial Year 2024/25 

 The purpose of this report is to inform the Police & Crime Panel of 
the Surrey Police Group (i.e. OPCC and Chief Constable 
combined) financial position at the end of November 2024 as well 
as a prediction for the situation at the end of March 2025.  

 

 

Kelvin Menon - 
OPCC 

2 2025/26 Budget and 
Proposed Precept 

 The Police and Crime Panel is required to consider and formally 
respond to the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Proposed 
Precept for 2025/26. The purpose of this item is to allow the 
Commissioner to outline her proposals in more detail and answer 
any questions that Panel Members might have. 

PCC 

3 Draft Police and 
Crime Plan 

 For the panel to consider and comment on the Commissioner’s 
Draft Police and Crime Plan 2025-28 

PCC 

24 April 2025 

1 Surrey Police Group 
Financial Report for 
the 10 Months Ended 
31 January 2025 

 Purpose of the report: This report sets out the financial 
performance of the Surrey Police Group (i.e. OPCC and Chief 
Constable combined) as at 31 January 2025 with a forecast to 31 
March 2025. 

 

2 Police and Crime Plan 
Update 
(Twice yearly – 
April/Nov) 
 

All To consider progress made against the agreed Police and Crime 
Plan. 

PCC 

P
age 77

14



3 Surrey Police 
Recruitment and 
Workforce Planning 
Update.  (Twice yearly 
– April/Sept) 
 

All The PCC to provide an update report every three months detailing 
the allocation of newly recruited officers as a result of the 20,000 
uplift, how many officers were in training and how many were on 
patrol. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

TOPICAL ITEMS TBC OR ITEMS KEPT UNDER REVIEW  

Anti-Social Behaviour and 
Rural Crime 

 TO BE 
SCHEDULED 

Discussed November Panel Session 2023: Performance against Priority 
3 in the Police and Crime Plan – ‘Working with Surrey Communities so 
that they feel safe’). 

 

Public Community Scrutiny 
Panels 

 TO BE 
SCHEDULED 

OPCC suggestion (Nov 23)  

Deaths on Surrey Roads  TO BE 
SCHEDULED 

Panel request Nov 23.  

Housing Strategy and 
Housing Hub feasilbility study  

 NOVEMBER 
2024 alongside 
Estates Update. 

Discussed as part of Estates Strategy item Nov 2023.  Further Estates 
Update to be scheduled in one year tbc (Nov 2024?) 

 

Report on key themes 
outcomes from Policing your 
Community events. 

 From cancelled 
April session 

[As agreed 14 Dec meeting Damian and Chairs] OPCC 

IT Strategy Update  From cancelled 
April session 

[As agreed at November 23 Panel Session.  Written update 6 months 
on. Note specific interest in CCTV convergence strategy] 
 

OPCC 

Victim Satisfaction  
 

N/A tbc PCC to update the Panel following discussions with the Chief Constable 
in the New Year 2024 around decline in victim satisfaction levels and 
need for better communications with the public around actions taken 
(what happens to victims after the initial call), keeping victims informed 
and managing expectations.  

Damian Markland - 
OPCC 

P
age 78

14



 

 

 

 

STANDING ITEMS: these will appear on every agenda 
 
 

Subject/Title Dates Police and 
Crime Plan 
Priority  

Purpose Contact Officer 

PCC Forward Plan and Key 
Decisions  

All All To review the key decisions made by the PCC in line with the Police 
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, Section 28(6). 

Decisions – Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Surrey (surrey-pcc.gov.uk) 

 
To review the PCC’s forward plan. 

OPCC 

Performance Meetings  All N/A To consider issues raised during monthly discussions between the 
PCC and the Chief Constable. 
 
To include the web link and notice of upcoming public meetings and 
most recent public performance report. 

Damian Markland - 
OPCC 

Recommendations Tracker 
and Forward Work 
Programme 

All N/A To monitor responses, actions and outcomes against 
recommendations or requests for further actions.  To provide a 
summary of work due to be undertaken by the Surrey Police and 
Crime Panel and work that has recently been completed. 
 

Scrutiny 
Officer/Democratic 
Services Assistant 

Commissioners Question 
Time  

All N/A For the Panel to raise any issues or queries concerning crime and 
policing in Surrey with the Commissioner – questions to be provided 
four working days in advance.  

Scrutiny 
Officer/Democratic 
Services Assistant 

Complaints All N/A To monitor complaints received against the PCC and/or DPCC Scrutiny 
Officer/Democratic 
Services Assistant 

P
age 79

14

https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/transparency/decisions/
https://www.surrey-pcc.gov.uk/transparency/decisions/


Working Groups – re-established in June 2024: 

Group Membership Purpose Reporting Dates 
 

Complaints Sub-Committee  To resolve non-criminal 
complaints against the PCC 
and/or the DPCC. 

Report to each meeting of the PCP, 
detailing any complaints dealt with 
since the last meeting. 

Finance Sub-Group 
 
 
 

 
 

To provide expert advice to the 
PCP on financial matters that falls 
within its remit. 

Reports verbally to the formal precept 
setting meeting of the Panel in 
February. 

 

P
age 80

14


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 26 SEPTEMBER 2024
	Minutes

	6 COMMISSIONING UPDATE
	7 SURREY POLICE GROUP FINANCIAL REPORT
	8 SURREY POLICE ESTATES UPDATE
	9 COMMISSIONER'S RESPONSE TO THE PANEL'S RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE COMMISSIONER'S ANNUAL REPORT
	Annual Report Recommendation - PCC response

	10 PCC FORWARD PLAN AND KEY DECISIONS
	12 SURREY PCP BUDGET MID-YEAR CLAIM 2024
	13 COMPLAINTS RECEIVED SINCE THE LAST MEETING
	14 RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	Appendix 1 - Surrey PCP Tracker - November
	Appendix 2 - PCP Forward Work Programme November 2024


